* | am not able fo provide any transcript evidence from the December 11-12, 2018
hearings as they were not abie to be retrieved from the court reporter. Exhibit #8
Further, there are several instances within the transcript that was able to be recovered

that my attorney and | both know are incorrectly transcribed.

In January 2018, after not utilizing any of his visitation since mid-April 2017 my
ex-husband again filed another RTSC — overall complaint again was “alienation”. Even
though “alienation” was not defined had no way to be assessed or measured and most
~important is not in violation of our agreement. Along with not u{ilizing visitation my ex-
husband also got engaged and married without even notifying or inviting our daughters
to the wedding. He did not spend any time with them during Father’s day or any of the
holidays, including Christmas. He did not even give them 1 Christmas present. He
dropped a letter off at our house notifying them that he had gotten married after he and
his wife had both posted about it on social media. This RTSC was scheduled to occur in
May in front of Judge Norton. Both attorneys agreed for the girls to start counseling & to
postpone the case. After the case was rescheduled the Family Court scheduler notified
Anita Floyd's office. After that Ms. Floyd’s office sent an email to the family court
scheduler stating that Judge Holmes had requested to retain jurisdiction over this case.
She did not provide any documentation but nonetheless the case was again re-
scheduled and again scheduled to be with Judge Holmes. This is straight up judge
shopping. Judge Holmes never requested to retain jurisdiction. My attorney, Julaan
Derrick sent Ms. Floyd a letter inquiring about her judge shopping but Ms. Floyd never
responded. Part of my ex-husband’s requests in the 2018 RTSC was for me to be
placed in jail and for our children (15 and 17) to be placed in foster care “to teach them
a harsh life lesson”. We were set for 3 days in December before Judge Holmes. During
the 3 days in December | was never afforded the time to testify. Hal and Ms. Floyd
monopolized the entire proceedings for him — Hal can afford to have 5 & 6 day hearings,
| cannot. After the 2nd day of listening to Hal testify to false accounts of events that he
admitted went on after he filed the 2018 RTSC Judge Holmes finally ruled that from



now on she would only hear about events during the time of the order. It was so biased
and improper to allow 2 days of the courts time to false claims that they even admitted
took place after the filing and then not even give me the opportunity to defend myself.
After Hal filed the 2018 RTSC he still did not try to utilize any of his visitation. He didn't
sven request any weeks for his summer visitation with the girls. His defense for not
utilizing his visitation was that he was scared of the girls and what possible type of claim
they could make against him. Even though there was no evidence to support this
whatsoever. During the 2 years prior to this | never received 1 letter/email/text or had
any other type of contact where Hai or Ms. Floyd notified me or expressed any concern
with Hal not utilizing his visitation or the girls behavior. However, on December 14,
2018, after just hearing from Hal's side Judge Holmes decided that both of my
daughters (who didn’t even know we were in court or had anything legal going on)
needed to be taken out of school and brought to the courthouse immediately so they
could observe her preside over DJJ cases. My mother was sent to pick up our
daughters who were frightened that | had been in an accident. They were made to sit
away from me in the courtroom and they were shaking, crying and frightened beyond
belief. They watched as Judge Holmes sentenced 2 different juveniles to DJJ. After that
Judge Holmes told them that no parent should ever be frightened by their children and
that if Hal had to contact her again about their behavior she would send them to DJJ in
Columbia. | couldn't believe what was happening both of our daughters were straight A
students-multiple honor societies, clubs-active in the community and our church-the
worst thing they have ever done is get a tardy. Further Judge Holmes had the solicitor
for DJJ lecture our daughters how if they were not at their father's house during his time
then they would be considered run-aways and that they prosecuted run-aways! Judge
Hoimes did not allow either of our daughters’ to speak or say anything. She fully acted
as if our daughters’ had been refusing to stay with Hal when the truth was that he had
been refusing them-he never once in 2 years showed up to pick them up to stay with
him-never once texted them and stated that it was his weekend an they needed to be
with him-nothing.



Exhibit #9-email between Anita Floyd's office and Family court scheduler. Letter from Julaan
Derrick to Anita Floyd referencing the Judge shopping. With as many times that Judge Holmes
has had our file it is very hard to imagine a scenario in which she didn’t come across these
emails as they are very clearly displayed.

Exhibit #10 - Reason for Pursuing Second Rule to Show Cause - portion of Hal's
affidavit where he requests me to go to jail and the girls to go o foster care to "teach
them a harsh life lesson”

icial issues duri i er 01

 Canon 1 - A judge shall uphold the integrity and independence of the judiciary.

Canon 2-A judge shall avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety in all
of the judges activities.

Canon 3-A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office impartially and
diligently. (2) A judge shall be faithful to the law and maintain professional
compétence in it. (3) A judge shall require order and decorum in proceedings
before the judge. {4) A judge shall be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants
and other with whom the judge deals and shall require similar conduct of lawyers
and others subject to the judge’s direction and control (5) A judge shall perform
judicial duties without bias or prejudice. A judge shall not by words or conduct
manifest bias or prejudice. (7) A judge shall accord to every person who has a
legal interest in a proceeding the right to be heard according to law. A judge shall
not permit or consider ex-parte communications or consider other
communications made to the judge outside the presence of the parties. (8) A
judge shall dispose of all judicial matters promptly, efficiently and fairly.
Specifically, a judge must demonstrate due regard for the rights of the parties to
be heard and to have issues resolved without unnecessary cost or delay. A judge
should monitor and supervise cases so as to reduce or eliminate dilatory
practices, avoidable delays and unnecessary costs. (9) A judge shall not, while a
proceeding is pending or impending in any court, make an public comment that
might reasonably be expected to affect its outcome or impair its fairness or make



any nonpublic comment that might substantially interfere with a fair trial or
hearing

Exhibit #11 Defendant’s Exhibits #1#30. This was all of the evidence presented to
the court during the 3 days allotted for our hearing. Further, Plaintiff’s exhibits #1-#7
were also introduced during cross examinations. It should be noted that in Plaintiff's
Exhibit #4 all of the social media posts are made during Hal’s visitation time with
the girls. Not only did he not utilize his visitation, he never made anyone aware
that he wasn’t coming to get them and then he posted what he was doing on
social media. Judge Holmes made extremely biased and improper statements on the
- record prior to me ever taking the stand or even being able to provide any of my
eviderice to counter Hal's lies. Further, during my appeal she has referenced these
comments and stated that they were also influenced in part due to her presiding over
the 2017 RTSC but again due to her blatant bias and prejudice | felt forced to settle-
therefore at this point in time she had never heard any testimony from me from either
RTSC hearing. | believe it is very important to see how the evidence Hal submitted in no
way substantiates Judge Holmes outrageous and biased statements that are clearly in
violation of many Judicial Canons. These exhibits can be referenced while reading. 1t
should be noted that some exhibits are multiple pages and don't provide any

substantive information-in those cases the first page will only be presented.

Exhibit #12-includes Page 4, Pages 14-18 and Page 30

Page 4 — line 5-12. During the first 2 days of testimony Judge Holmes allowed Hal and
Anita to bring forward witnesses and speak on events that they claim occurred after the
1/8/18 RTSC was filed. These fabricated events were not relevant to the RTSC and
wasted a lot of court time. However, when it was time to cross-she no longer allowed
any testimony regarding these allegations and | was not able to defend myself.

Page 14-Line 25 through page 18-line 13. Issues again with Judge Holmes not
requiring Hal to file a Financial Declaration and abide by the Rules of Court and comply
with Rule 20, SCFCR-Julaan asks Hal his monthly income. Anita asks for a recess {0

discuss with Hal. Anita returns and asks Judge Holmes if they can wait and see if | am



found in contempt befare he waives his attorney fees-she states that it would occur
when we return and that we would have ample time. Judge Holmes agrees to this
request and states that we will handle attorney fees at a separate hearing where the
income of both parties will be relevant however, that never happened.

Page 30 — line 10 — for Judge Holmes to claim that,“She knows exactly what has
been going on” prior o me ever even taking the stand shows an incredible bias and
prejudice along with an extreme level of impropriety.

Exhibit #13-includes emails between Greg Forman and the court franscriber regarding
missing statements from Judge Holmes that were made on the record, the transcript of
and testimony along with Plaintiff's Exhibit’s #15 and #16 to refute Judge Holmes
slanderous statements against me. Also includes: Pages 45-55; pages 64-75; pages
137-139.

Page 45-line 13-there was not a recess. This is when Judge Holmes ordered that my
children, who knew nothing about these proceedings, be brought to court so that they
could watch DJJ hearings and see what happens to children that don't listen to their
parents. This was all while on record. My appeals attorney, Greg Forman even
requested the audio of the hearing but we were denied.

Page 45 — line 15 through the end of page 55 — shows the whole horrible ordeal.
Page 45 — line 23-25 when Judge Holmes states “it is clear to the court, that the
children have been empowered to make decisions as to whether they're g'oing to
visit the father or not.” To me this shows extreme bias as there was not 1 piece of
evidence that proved this further, for her to make such a bold statement prior to me
even taking the stand shows prejudice and the appearance of impropriety. |

Page 47 — line 11-12 when Judge Holmes states “manipulation has occurred, and it
is clear to the Court that it has occurred.” Where is the evidence? Which exhibit
proves this? Again, this shows extreme bias as there was not 1 piece of evidence that
proved this further, for her o repeatedly make such bold prejudicial statements that
have no evidence to support them and are prior to me even taking the stand shows total

and complete lack of character, competency and ethics.



Page 47-lines 14-15. Judge Holmes tells our children that recording conversations in
one person’s home is illegal and not acceptable. This is not true and she should have a
better understanding of the law.

Page 47-line 17-21. Where is the evidence or exhibit that proves that either of the girls
were told that they no longer had to visit with their father or that they refused to follow
his rules? The man NEVER once showed up to get them during any of his visitation or
custodial times. He refused them!

Page 48-line 11-12. Judge Holmes stated that there have been vacations scheduled
during the father's time. That is not true and there is not 1 exhibit or piece of evidence to

show otherwise. Further, again these statements were made prior to my testimony

“showing extreme bias and impropriety! (Judge Holmes makes multiple Teferences’

throughout the hearing regarding me making vacation plans during Hal's fime.) The
testimony referenced in the May 22 and 23, 2019 Trial Transcript Page 64-line 6
through page 73 line 7 along with Plaintiff’s Exhibit # 15 and Plaintiff’s Exhibit #
16 show otherwise. Further, this is referenced again in my cross from Anita Floyd on
page 137-line 2 through page 139 line 22.

Page 49 —line 14—17. For Judge Holmes to state that Hal doesn’t have to call me or the
girls to see if they are coming for his visitation is so biased. First, this never happened
and there is no evidence to support it. Further, Hal never once showed up to pick the
girls up for his visitation! Not once did my girls refuse to go with him! _

Page 50-line 4-5. |n reference to our original order stating that we are not to discuss
litigation with the children or in the presence of the children... Judge Holmes states that
it is clear from the documents that she has reviewed that this has occurred. Again, there
is no evidence to support her claim. The only exhibits that reference any communication
about court issues is between Hal and the girls (Plaintiff's Exhibit #7)

Page 50-line 16-19. Judge Holmes states that she has never had such a case where
the facts were so clear of disrespect to a parent? Again, what exhibit/evidence supports
her claim. Further, teenagers by nature are not perfect and should not be hyper judged
on their responses to an emotionally abusive parent. Again, | believe that this shows

lack of character, competency and ethics.



Page 50-lines 21 and 22. How can Judge Holmes classify this case as Hal fighting to
see his children when | haven't even taken the stand and it has been made clear
through the actual exhibits and testimony that he did not even utilize his own visitation

with the girls? This case and all of his other cases have been about hurting me.

Judicial issues from the hearings on May 22, 2019 and May 23, 2019

Canon 1 - A judge shall uphold the integrity and independence of the judiciary.

- -Canon 2-A judge shall-avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety in ali

of the judges activities.

Canon 3-A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office impartially and
diligently. (2) A judge shall be faithful to the law and maintain professional
competence in it. (3) A judge shall require order and decorum in proceedings
before the judge. (4) A judge shall be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants
and other with whom the judge deals and shall require similar conduct of lawyers
and others subject to the judge’s direction and control (5) A judge shall perform
jUdiciaI duties without bias or prejudice. A judge shall not by words or conduct
manifest bias or prejudice. (7) A judge shall accord to every person who has a
legal interest in a proceeding the right to be heard according to law. A judge shall
not permit or consider ex-parte communications or consider other
communications made to the judge outside the presence of the parties. (8) A
judge shall dispose of all judicial matters promptly, efficiently and fairly.
Specifically, a judge must demonstrate due regard for the rights of the parties to
be heard and to have issues resolved without unnecessary cost or delay. A judge
should monitor and supervise cases so as to reduce or eliminate dilatory
practices, avoidable delays and unnecessary costs. (9) A judge shall not, while a
proceeding is pending or impending in any court, make an public comment that
might reasonably be expected to affect its outcome or impair its fairness or make
any nonpublic comment that might substantially interfere with a fair trial or
hearing



Exhibit #14-Includes pages 126-127; pages 159-160; page 163, page 177; page 194;
pages 266-268; and page 300 through the end of the transcript.

Page 126 line 10 through page 127 line 2 Anita Floyd attempts to get me to validate a
fraudulent and altered text message - | clearly expressed what had been altered and
somehow Judge Holmes had no concern for this behavior that clearly violates many
legal codes of éonduct and even though she has been so insistent to put false negative
comments about me and my children on the record she is fine to sit silent for this blatant

display.

Page 159 line 18-page 160 line 9. If you look through this prior testimony neither

" Tmyself nor Julaan could even recall them playing this recording in December. First, they -

say they couldn't find a way to introduce the recording-then they didn’t know if it had
been transcribed-then they said even though it had been played it had not gone into
evidence. While Judge Holmes restates all of Anita's statements regarding this alleged
recording why' didn’t she just let Anita play it? Why would Anita just back down from
playing it so easily? If they were so excited to impeach my testimony why in the world
didn't, they just play the recording? | don't believe that they ever played the recording in
December. | believe that this shows ancther example of collusion and ex-parte
conversations between Anita Floyd and Judge Holmes. At this paint in time none of us
were aware that the transcripts from December 11 &12 were not going to be able to be
retrieved so they could have just asked for the record to be checked. Judge Holmes

statements are unwarranted and show bias and the appearance of impropriety.

Page 163 line 16-19. At the beginning of court on 12/14/18 Judge Holmes made clear
that even though she had allowed Hal and Anita to discuss things that allegedly went on
after the rule was filed that going forward, she was only going to allow things strictly
during the time frame of the rule. This is an example of her showing bias again and

giving leeway to Hal and Anita.

Page 177 line 13-16-Judge Holmes shows bias again-Haley Kathryn didn't testify in

December-how does she know what she thinks or how she feels? Those were



statements from Anita and Hal that she simply repeated. That is in no way how a judge
should behave.

Page 194 line 3-18. Julaan makes her objection to Dr. Heidt testifying as a reply
witness as she did not include anything regarding Dr. Heidt in her questions to me. This
is highly improper and shows a complete lack of ethics and bias.

Page 266 line 17 through page 268 line 12 — Judge Holmes showed bias in not
allowing my recording of Hal to be played

Page 300 line 23 through page 304. Discussing updating attorney fees but does not
give the Qpportunity to get Hal's financials. Judge Holmes refused to make Hal comply
with the Rules of Court and cdrﬁply with Rule 20 SCFCR and provide his financial
declaration.

Exhibit#15 - Includes letters from my attorneys requesting Judge Holmes to comply

with her own order and choose a counseior for our daughters. | am only including a

couple of the letters that were sent. Prior to the letters were lots of emails and phone

calls were | was charged attorney fees. None of which she ever responded to and never
did she choose a counselor, Further, she allowed Anita Floyd to waste court time
making false claims about how the girls not getting into counseling sooner was my fault!
It is hard to imagine a scenario in which collusion and ex-parte conversation with Anita

Floyd did not occur.



Judicial Issues from the Ruling on June 14, 2019

Canon 1 - A judge shall uphold the integrity and independence of the judiciary.

Canon 2-A judge shall avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety in all
of the judges activities.

Ganon 3-A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office impartially and
diligently. (2} A judge shali be faithful to the law and maintain professional
competence in it. (4) A judge shall be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants
__and other with whom the judge deals and shall require similar conduct of lawyers

and others subject to the judge’s direction and control (5) A judge shali perfor
judicial duties without bias or prejudice. A judge shall not by words or conduct
manifest bias or prejudice. (9) A judge shall not, while a proceeding is pending or
impending in any court, make an public comment that might reasonably be
expected to affect its outcome or impair its fairness or make any nonpublic
comment that might substantially interfere with a fair trial or hearing

While | do not agree with any part of Judge Holmes ruling and believe that |
have factual evidence to dispute each of her claims that is not the purpose of this

complaint. | will however stay with 2 issues.

Exhibit #16 - Includes Paragraph #7 and Paragraph #14 along with Plaintiff's Exhibit
#21 and Plaintiff's Exhibit #22 '

Paragraph #7 - There is more than enough evidence on the record to prove that this
should not have been an issue-l won't rehash any of that. However, in DiMarco v
DiMarco the Supreme Court stated that contempt sanctions cannot be imposed if a
party is already in compliance. We were never notified they had any issue prior to the
filing of the rule and by the time we got to court | had been able to open a separate bank
account that didn’t need overrides and this had been handled for 13months. Judge

Holmes should have had a better knowledge of the law.



Paragraph # 14-Judge Holmes acknowledges that there is a great deal of disparity in
the parties incomes. How does she know that? She refused to ailow Haf's financials to
be entered into evidence or viewed. But then she stated that | had sufficient income to
satisfy a portion of Hal's fees and costs. First, ! would state that $40k is more than a
portion. Second, Plaintiff's Exhibit #21 and Plaintiff's Exhibit #22 provide more than
enough evidence that | did not have sufficient income to satisfy $40k.



Issues wit eme ecr ecor
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Canon 1 - A judge shall uphold the integrity and independence of the judiciary.

Canon 2-A judge shall avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety in all
of the judges activities.

Canon 3-A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office impartially and
diligently. (2) A judge shall be faithful to the law and maintain professional

competence in it. (4) A judge shall be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants - -

and other with whom the judge deals and shall require similar conduct of lawyers
and others subject to the judge’s direction and control (5) A judge shall perform
judicial duties without bias or prejudice. A judge shall not by words or conduct
manifest bias or prejudice. (9) A judge shail not, while a proceeding is pending or
impending in any court, make an public comment that might reasonably be
expected to affect its outcome or impair its fairness or make any nonpublic
comment that might substantially interfere with a fair trial or hearing

The whole concept that Judge'Hom es could recreate a trial transcript from 2 full
days of testimony, cross and redirect from her notes is preposterous. Especially
since | haven't found 1 person that even saw her taking notes. It is my opinion that
all she did was try to recreate a version to support her ruling - which in and of itself
creates an appearance of impropriety and bias. ! will only touch on 3 issues as they
were above and beyond filled with a lack of ethics and bias.

Exhibit #17-Includes Page 3, pages 21-24, pages 26-27, Defendant’s Exhibit #22,
pages 50-51



Page 3-lines 22-25-are references to a motion to compel and a motion to guash in
reference 1o bank and tax records. The record does not state what the motion to
compel or motion to quash was for or who requested it and further it does not
include arguments back and forth between counse! and ultimately does not include
Judge Holmes decision. This was a very big issue that my attorney argued. Judge
Holmes quashed our request for tax returns and financial records even though Hal
was requesting attorney fees and costs and was the one who had filed the case.
Further, she ruled that | was to be required to turn over my bank records. Hal's
attorney assured the court that he was financially able to pay any and all of his

attorney fees and that if the court was going to order him to turn over his financial

Page 21-line 7 through Page 24 fine 11-Judge Holmes literally read verbatim Hal's
affidavit for the rule into the record. This did not come from any “notes”. She did not
include any statements from her so called notes on Hal's testimony, nor did she
include any objections or arguments that were definitely made. This was an exireme

level of bias, collusion, lack of ethics and impropriety.

Page 26 lines 22-25 and page 27 line 1-Judge Holmes discusses Defendant’s Exhibit
#22 - the text where | asked our daughter to record her father.

Page 50 line 17-21-Julaan Derrick pointed out that Hal admitted that he had lied to the
police by telling them he didn’t know where her phone was and allowed them to
waste hours on a call that should have never happened. He literally allowed one of
the officers to look through his truck for the phone knowing that he would never find
it. Ms. Derrick also pointed out that he further admitted that he told the officer’s that
he would rather go to jail than return the phone.

Page 50 line 22 through page 51 line 3-Judge Holmes does not even attempt fo hide
her bias and impropriety with her response. Judge Holmes replied that Hal lied to the
police because he wanted to get proof that | had instructed our daughter to record
their father. She further stated that he did what he thought was in his best interest in
terms of him getting proof of the text. After Hal and Eddie saw the text on HK’s



phone, they both testified that they fook a screenshot of the text. This screenshot is
Defendant’s Exhibit #22. HK's phone was passcode protected and Hal was not
able to open it so that he could listen to and delete the recording of his frightening
and abusive behavior at dinner that evening. Hal had already secured his evidence
of my text with the screen shot, he lied to the police in an attempt to buy time so that
he could destroy the evidence of his abusive behavior that evening. It is concerning
that Judge Holmes would go so far in attempts to justify Hal’'s behavior and ignore
the evidence that was read onto the record on two occasions in Defendant’s Exhibit
#22 which clearly provides the proof that Judge Holmes claims Hal was seeking

with his lies to the police.
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From: Gregory S. Forman, PC attormey@gregerylorman.com &
Subject: Re: Desites Allen correspondence 10-28-19.pdf
Date: November 4, 2019 at 5:55 PM
To: Michells Capps mdaviscapps@gmail.com
Ce: Julaan [di@jdHaw.com

Houth Carolina Court Atministeation

dearry Careious Seupreats Canrl
Cotumyin, Sooth Cavolina
! ﬂTLTéga;Kg;u 0 BIRLYE BPRENT BUNTY TR
ADERETRATOR . COLUERS, BOASTE: SARSE A, PIC
T v EADHE (9l T 1R
o , L RARAMA T, DALE ) "

GlETY DRECTOR - - : An pn A G
Ociober 29, 2019
Grepory Samuel Forman, Esy.

17 Church Street, Sulte 160
Charleston, SC 29411

inre:  Michelle Dayis Capps v foscph Horold Capps Jr. 2014DR2601563

Dear Mr. Porman:

This Is to follow up on the transcript request from August and the emails your office has sent
concerning the transcript frum provesdings held on December 10-11, 2018, before fudge Bromell Holmes in
thig matter. | am sorry that there has been a delay in response to your requests.  As you may know, when
court reparters. leave our employ, we are required to retatn their records for a period of five years Ms
Wright delivered court records when she left, which Intfucded Chs on which her audio was stored.  The
request ad Mz, Weight's records were forwarded to enother court reporter on August 23, 2019, o prepare
the transcript  Upon receipt of this CD, the court reporter checked for the audio recordings va the CD but
was unable t pet it to work.  She reported to me that it just kept spinning. | immediately uled 1o make
contact with Ms. Wright, who has boen aveay from her home for the months of August and September.  When
1 reached Ms. Wright to ascertain whether or not she Tad a source from which to make another CD, she
reparted to me that she did net.  She explalned that she erased her 5D card upon transferring the zndin to
Che.

Therefore, | must repart that Court Administration hes exbausted all avenues in the search for
additionsl records to produce this transcript  Unfortunately, without them, 2 transcript cannot be produced.
| siticerely regret the Incoavenience this has caused you and all partics involved. I &m copying the cpposing
altorney n case the transcript kad already been prepared for them. I not, and if there Is some other way
that | can assiet you in this matter, do not hesitate to contact me.

€C:  Anita Flayd Lee, Esg.



From: Gregory Forman attorney@gregorylorman.corm &
Subject: 2014DR2601563Ext1 pdi
Date: Octobar 21, 2019 at 9:16 AM
To: Michelle Capps mdaviscapps @gmail.com

FYl

The Supreme Court of South Caroling

Michelle Davis Capps

(
(
{
¢
TITLE OF (V. 2014DR2601563
CASE {
{
(
{ Joscph Harold Capps, Jr.
{
(

Nofice

Upon request and for good causc shown, Patsy Martin, Court Reponter, is hereby
granted an extension up to and including November 22, 20 19 to preparc and deliver the
Transcript of Record in the above case.

Desirce rHien
Court Reporter Manager
South Carolina Court Administration

Colwmbia, South Carolina
10:21/2019

cc:  Patsy Martin
attomey(@gregoryforman.com
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NOTICE OF HEARING

A HEARING HAS BEEN SET IN THIS MATTER FOR THE 15:& 29 DAY OF May 2018, AT
9:30 A, M. BEFORE THE HONORABLE Ronald Norton IN FAMILY COURTROOM NUMBER 2D.

W W
Family Court Coordinater
Fifteenth Judicial Circuit

N ——p———————t e R S PP L P R LA PRS2 IS S TS AL L2 A S L S Lol S Ak iy

B RTSC REQUEST

k***********#*************#**#*******#****##*********************************#X*****#***k

CAPTION: Michelle Davis Capps vs. Joseph Harold Capps, Jr.
CASE NO: 2014-DR-26-1563 DATE RTSC FILED: 1/8/2018

MOVING ATTORNEY (S): Anita Floyd Lee
TEL: 843-248-3206 FAX: 843-248-7173

MDVING ATTORNEY REPRESENTS [] PLAINTIFF [X] DEFENDANT [ ] GAL
OPPOSING ATTORNEY[S) Pro Se
GUARDIAN AD LITEM: N/A
NATURE OF RTSC: RTSC
~ ESTIMATED'TIME NEEDED: 2 days
UNAVAILABLE DATES:
January: 15-31
Februaryil: 28
Maich: 1-30°

April: 1-27
June 1,4-8,11-15

1 certify T have consulted with opposing counsel regarding the above “Dates available™:




L—I_gusand-Church, Krystle

From: bpotter@anitafloydiaw.com
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 10:35 AM
To: Housand-Church, Krystle
Subject: RE: Capps RTSC Hearing Request

You can schedule in September before Judge Holmes.
Thank you and sorry far the confusion.

Bridget ). Potter

Paralegal for Anita Floyd Lee

1115 Third Avenue

Conway, 5C 29526

843.248.3206 facsimile No.: 843.248.7173

R CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION®** The information contained in this message may contain legally privileged and
confidential information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message
is not the intended recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or duplication of this
transmission is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us by telephone or
email immediately and return the originai message to us or destroy all printed and electronic copies. Nothing in this
transmission is intended to be an electronic signature nor to constitute an agreement of any kind under applicable law
unless otherwise expressly indicated. Intentional interception or dissemination of electronic mail not belonging to you
may violate federal or state law.

From: Housand-Church, Krystle [mailto:churchk@HorryCounty.org]
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 10:33 AM

To: bpotter@anitafioydlaw.com

Subject: RE: Capps RT5C Hearing Request

Piease let me know what you would fike for me to do.

Krystle H. Church/Administrative Assistant

Horry County Government

Family Court Schedufing Clerk

1301 Second Avenue, Conway, South Carolina, 29526
Tel: (843) 915-8981 Fax: {843) 915-8972

Church OrTYCOUNty.or,

From: bpotter@anitafloydiaw.com [mailto:bpotter@anitafloydlaw.com}
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 10:11 AM
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To: Hous&nd-Church, Krystle <ch§2hk@Horerountv.org> @
Subject: RE: Capps RTSC Hearing Request

Hey girl . | am so sorry as | didn't note it and should have, but Judge Holmes wanted to keep jurisdiction. Will she be in
Horry the month of August?

Bridget J. Potter

Paralegal for Anita Floyd Lee

1115 Third Avenue

Conway, SC 28526

843.248.3206 Facsimile No.: B43.248.7173

¥+ *CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION*** The information contained in this message may contain legally privileged and
confidential information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above, if the reader of this message
is not the intended recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or duplication of this
transmission is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us by telephone or
email iImmediately and return the original message to us or destroy all printed and electronic copies. Nothing in this
——transmissian-is intended to be an electronic signature nor to constitute an agreement of any kind under applicable law
unless otherwise expressly indicated. Intentional interception or dissemination of electronic mail not belonging to you
may violate federal or state law.

From: Housand-Church, Krystle [mailto:churchk@HotryCounty.org}
Sent: Tuesday, April 24, 2018 9:58 AM
To: bpotter@anitafloydlaw.com

Cc: 'Debra Cooper’ <debra@jdllaw.com>
Subject: RE: Capps RTSC Hearing Request

Bridget,
Please see attached hearing request.

Thanks,

Krystle H. Church/Administrative Assistant

Horry County Government

Family Court Scheduling Clerk

1301 Second Avenue, Conway, South Carolina, 28526

Tel: (843) 915-8981 Fax: (843) 915-8972

Churchk@horrycounty.org

From: bpotter@anitafloydlaw.com [mailto:bpotter@anitafloydlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2018 10:55 AM
To: Housand-Church, Krystie <churchk@HorryCounty.org>




Cc; 'Debra Cooper' <d—ebra@id}la@om> l @
Subject: Capps RTSC Hearing Request

Attached,
Thank you

Bridget ). Potter

Paralegal for Anita Floyd Lee

1115 Third Avenuse

Conway, 5C 29526

843.248.3206 Facsimile No.: 843.248.7173

**ECONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION*** The information contained in this message may contain legally privileged and
confidential information intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message
is not the intended recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or duplication of this
transmission is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us by telephone or
emait immediately and return the ariginal message to us or destroy ali printed and electronic copies. Nothing in this
transmission is intended to be an electronic signature nor to constitute an agreement of any kind under applicable law

— ————unless otherwise expressly indicated. Intentional interception or dissemination of electronic mail not belonging to you

may violate federal or state law.

LRSS

All e-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to public disclosure under the South
Carolina Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). This correspondence is intended exclusively for the individual or
entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential or
otherwise legally exempt from disclosure



A HEARING HAS BEEN SET iN THIS MATTER FOR THE 17t & 18t DAY OF September,

2018, AT 9:30 A M, BEFORE THE HONORABLE ]_@_ﬁ[OJ]lQJLﬂQLHlﬁ IN FEAMILY COURTRCOM
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CAPTION: Michelle Davis Capps vs. Joseph Harold Capps, Jr.

35S

CASENO: 2014-DR-26-1563 DATE RTSC FILED: 1/8/2018

MOVING ATTORNEY(S): Anita Floyd Lee
TEL: 843-248-3206 RAX: 843-248-7173

MOVING ATTORNEY REPRESENTS: [] PLAINTIFF [X] DEFENDANT [ ] GAL
OPPOSING ATTORNEY(S): Julaan Derrick

GUARDIAN AD LITEM: N/A

NATURE OF RTSC: RTSC

ESTIMATED TIME NEEDED: 2 days

UNAVAILABLE DATES:

May 1-31

June 1-29

July 2-31

August 1,2,3,21-24,27-31
September 3,4,5,20,21,24

I certify I have consulted with opposing counsel regarding the above “Dates available™:
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money, and | am seifish because I don’t give her as much as she wants, Toward
satisfaction of her attorney’s fees, I deduci $1,000.00 per month from the monthiy
amount she receives.

3. After that hearing, I mistakenly thought that Michelie would move on with her life and
guit obsessing over how much she hates me, Unfortunately, court orders mean nothing
to Michelle, and in her effori to destroy me, she has damaged our children. 1 need her
held accountable, and I need our children to see what happens when authority is
disrespected,

Redson for Pursuing Second Rule to Show Cause
4. Our children did not hate me before we separated, but they do now, and they behave

atrociously toward me and toward my parents. [ am embarrassed to tell the court of
the things they have said and done, and I am ashamed that they seem to think it is OK
to act asthey do. Basically, they mimic Michelle.

5. ‘This, if Michelle is imprisoned because of her blatant and repeated actions which are
in viclafion of the court order, the children can go into foster care and learn that there
are consequences to bad behavior. 1t will' break my heart to see thern Jearn such a
harsh life Jesson. However, they are currently headed for very bad falls, and after
praying about this, and discussing the issues with my fiancé, my parents, my pastor, my
lawyer and my counselor, | believe that if I do nothing, I embrace what Michelle is
teaching our children— Ze., that if is OK to be a bully; that it is OK to lie; tha'f it is OK to
throw temper tantrums and to disrespect parents and grandparents; and that if is OK to
try arid manipulate others fo get what you want in life. My children have no frue
understanding that hard work 1s a necessity in life; that expensive clothes/shoes,
‘compurters, and cars are not an entiflement or a necessity; and that treating others the
way you want to be treated is as necessary as is gefting good grades and getting into a
good college.

Ferfinent Provisions of Order Which has been violated
6. Page 3 of the RTSC Order which is dated March 30, 2017, and which was filed April

11, 2017, reads as follows:

1. Custody: The parties will have joint custody of their children,
with Plaintiff being designated the primary custodial parent. In
addition to the visitation that is set forth in the parties’
agreement dated June 25, 2014, Defendant shall be entitled to
the following:

a.  Every Monday Defendant will be responsible for
taking the children to school, and picking them up
from school. He may participate in a carpool

49
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE FAMILY COURT

FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF HORRY

DOCKET NO: 2014-DR-26-1563
MICHELLE DAVIS CAPPS

PLAINTIFF,
VERSUS
TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
JOSEPH HAROLD CAPPS JR.

DEFENDANT.

PR S e i i i

CONWAY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DECEMBER 14, 2018
BEFORE:
THE HONORABLE JAN BROMELL-HOLMES
APPEARANCES:
JULAAN DERRICEK, ESQUIRE
ATTORNEY FOR THE PLATNTIFF

ANITA LEE, ESQUIRE
ATTORNEY FOR THE DEFENDANT

ROBIN R. LEWIS
FAMILY COURT REPORTER

187
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PALMETTO

e COUNSELZNG SER\/%CES

. Personsineluded -
 Michelle .
. Mickelle
. ;'Mcheﬂr: _
. ‘Haley Latherme &lely. (.
<7 Haley Katl1emzwc_&_;,3a1uLy '_
COHal. .
T :Hai&i&"{aiey Kathamna .
_Mjc:he{la , ‘
Haley Kﬂ_the.’::iité" .
= Erruly _ |
' :-Hal & Enuly :
= Hal, Haiey Kaﬂ'lcrma & Ermly
- M’.lchellc S -
“Hal, Halcy Kafharm& & Emﬂy
. | _ ‘Hal Haley hathelme Sc Emﬁy
':Mmheﬂe "
'P{al * :
- Hal, Haley Exathemnc &Emﬂy
-, E Hal Haley Katharme & Emﬂy
| ."I\/uchalle ' .
Hal, Haicy Kﬁtherme & Enuly "
'_-' Hal Haley Katherine & Emﬂy

Hal, Ha.lcy Ka.the:nne & Ermly

 Michelle
Hal |
. Hal, Haley Katherine & Emily

Licensed. Professional Counselor / Supervisor

* Licensed Marrage & Family Therapist / Supervisor
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1 125 48“‘ Avenue. North
Myrﬁe Beach, South Carolina 29577
P B43-282-1061 F 843-282-1064
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1051 University Forest Drive .
' Conway, Sounth Carolina 20526

-(843) 9024773 .
_ _ o (8433476954
- EDUCATION | | e
©March 2007 | _: - Doctor of Phﬂosophy, Psycholcgy, Capella Umve:rsny, :
S .;aneapohs, mme:sota
May1995 IR Master of Smencc, Marmaoe and Famlly Tharapy, East
R 'Caro}.ma Umvermty, Grcenwlle North Carohna SRT
L May 1977 B "Bachclar of Scmnee, Lducatmn, Chaxleston Southem Umvermty.- :
o o ”Charlestaﬂ, SeuﬂnCamhm o i : .
'WORK EXPERIENCE
o _.;Qcteber 2002— Prwate pmcncﬁ L
iP;gsent S Conway, Souﬂz Carolma .
o Malch?.(}(}(}« - Therapxst, Wamamaw Ceuter for Ment:al P.[ealth
 October 2004 . Socastes High School»Myrtlc Beach, 8C R
L - Resmnmbllmes. Tacluded prowdmg mdlmdual fmly, and . _'
-group therapy; as well as case managament, to hlgh school '
students aad their famzhes
_—-Decembea‘1999— ' B T N S
. .-March 2000 N eeds Assessment Ccmnselor, C.‘harter Behavmral Healfh Carefr o

" Bystems, Conway, Scuth Carolina =
_ Responsibilities: Included- prcmdmg emerge;ncy ’mage :
- assessments of mental héalth disorders, including walk-ingand
- telephong helpline calls; ‘establishing 2 working DSM-IV
-~ diagnosis; determining level of care necdcd and fac111tatmg a
: .hfdnsmon to th&: apprcpnatc lt-:vel, af care:, §
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Helen Bayne, PhD LMFT
235 Singleton Ridge Road
Conway, SC 29526
843-902-4773
843-347-6954

February 14, 2018
Dr. Heidt:

My name is Helen Bayne and I bave been seeing Michelle Capps since last Apri,
2017. Thave been given a copy of the court order and mnderstand that T am to be in
communication with Mr, Capps’ counselor, which the court order states is you. It is
my understanding that we are both to communicate with each other and address
any and all issues of any alienation between the girls and their father. 1t is also my
understanding that both of us are to submit 3-4 names of suggested counselors for
the girls and then Judge Holmes will select a counselor from the recommendations
we provide. I am also assuming that if any testifying is needed in any future
hearings, we are agreeing to comply.

I have called and left messages at your office on several oceasions and have never
heard back from you. I am concerned that the girls have not been able to start
counseling. In May of 20171 submitted the following names for counselors for
the girks: Edward Connor (843-268-05 30), Elizabeth Nixon (843-455-2258), and
Marie Woodward (843-410-4943), Ms. Capps informed me that Mr. Capps told the
girls that he had started seeing Stephanie Fleming as a counselor and that he had
also made an appointment with her for them to attend with him. This concerned
me because it is directly against what is in the court order. Ms. Capps has made
numerous attempts through emails and phone calls to get her attorney to follow up
with Judge Holmes and to select a counselor for the girls. In December 0f 20171
was informed that Edward Connor was no longer accepting any new patients so I
recommended James Garvey in his place (843-450-063 6).

Recently, I was made aware that Dr. Ken Smith was taking new patients (893-282-
1061). He is in BCBS network and his office is on 48th Avenue which is very
convenient for the girls with their busy school and activity schedules. He has
many years experience in treating adolescents and their families with all types of
conflict and 1 highly recommend him as well. My suggested counselors are as
follows:

g DEFENDANT'S
g EXHIBIT
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- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE

_ )
K .'-'COUNTY OF HORRY -} FIFTEENTH ]UDICLAL CIRCUIT .
. ) Case Numben 2014—DR26 1563
: MlchelleDaws Capps, 3 U
 Plaintiff )  ORDER BASED gPON
R ) | RULETOSHDWCAUSB Ea =
Joseph Harold Capps,' T RS
... Defendant . ey PR L E9m o
o HEARING JUDGE: . . _'}Z‘heHonerableIan Brome Eﬁnlrﬁ‘ésgg
R HEARINGDATE SO 0 january 30;31,2017  B=9 W o
S oo Rebruaryy 2017 &,
;':'PLAINTIFF’SA'I"I‘BRNEY T _'f-.MaryMa&suanttam Langwey e
R r'{'DEFENDANTSATTQRNEY:_ S0t cAnitaFoLee. . oo
©COURTREPORTER: . - H EugeneBucimef

On Iune 25 2014 Plemttff and Def‘endant ent‘ered mf:o e Custudy Agreementwhn:h

ias Was approw;d by this Henerable Court on fuly 14, 2014 Thereafter, on Octob Br- 3 2014 the

parhes Were dworced fmm nne another Unfommately, althnugh the mamage ended the

' stnfe between the pertles dld not, as thhin menths of havmg thelr Custady Agreement

- approved one or both parhes were expresemg drscontent over the conduc:t ef the ofher

On February 1@ 2015 Defendant sent to Plamtlff a letter indxcetlng that if she

o wmﬂd ettend counselmg, and if she Would caeperate mth Defendenfs eﬂ"orts te attend

caunsehng mth the chﬂdren he would not request a Rule to Show Cause heanngﬂ . '

- ’I‘hereaften the parmes attended cuunselmgwrth Hal Heuit and: Befendant also arttencled

S counselmg wn:h the Parttes oldest ehlld. Defend.ant‘a]iﬂges that, after oniy a few months, o

Plemtlﬁ‘ eeesed thxe r:ounselmg, though she Jo c:eted another counselor for herself and: the

ehﬂdren Desplte Defendaﬁt 5 protestatmns regardmgPIemtlff’s decmon to mthdraw from T

A comnselmg with Hal H eidf, as well ashis objec:tten fo the cmmeelar whem Plamuff selected Ll

for the chﬂdren, Plamtlff wou!d not recon51der her decmon _ _ S
Thereafter on May 6 2016 Defendantﬁled a Rule to Shuw Cause Petmon, wherem - By
| he sought anorder heldmg P]amtﬁf in contempt of courtas Well as correspandlng o
sanc‘aons The basm of Defendent’s Petltmn igas follows ' T
o 1 That Plamtn‘f did not comply with the final order in regards to the drv:smn of
_ | persenal property, in that she removed the vast ma}ontyef furmfure and other -
e m‘ | o,.df:ez;;f::e;ssc Sl DC Coy o
Case Number 2014 DR«E&' 1563 ' '

P-ée,e 1




frear Halnanz sanmaelGgaal won
Selyeel. Summer -
Date:  February 28, 201'1’ at 11:14 PM
- To. Michelle Da\lsCapps LSS G Ry 3

i would hke to take the glrls thls summer from aug ‘l to aug o
7. And from July 18to July 24, Dzsregard he previous date in June

Sent from my :Phone

) DEFENUANT* =
g i 4

ralulr ¢ a’w '; .
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af!oyd @a mtafloydtaw com

Fram T -halmanZE@aol com; :
Psent: o Sunday, Novamber'as 2018 EMPM
Toio o T __aﬂoyd@amtaﬁoyd IW.Lom
Subje;fz_': T - 5/4/17 e-mall. Ahenatlon Counseilmg

Oll Thu:sday, May 4 2017 hahnanZé@&ol cnm <halm S@aol com> wrote

, l need You: to provude. g’ the narme of the counsalor youl are: seemg fc:r the court ordered alienatron counse!lng and the .
date(s) you have met with h1rnfher The caunseicr Is.ta be i in confadt Wi‘ih Dr Heldt ' :

'When 1. emalled you: the dates | wanted o have the girls this summer | had asked H. K numerous times rfshe was going -
‘1o the church ratreat. numerpus times. she fold me. emphatlcally "Ne:" lasked h 'r't_he day before! sent you the dates
Capd: she told die shewas not golng; | emaded vou the dates:| was haking thegirls this summet. Thewaek aftér -sent you
the dates | talked o HHK. When asked about the. rmission trip and our trip her response.had chianged. She told methat.
Mo s making me go on the mission trip. | don't: Have a.tho C'an you: axplalr this. p!eas “Elther. £He was ot betng‘ o
- truthfidl or yotr stance on the msslon trip: c.hanged aﬁer you recefved the emal Forcing herto go 'this trtp you A
i -takmg myhme ~ : : ' S SR A R

gl hav\e told HK I wanf her to go o counselmg She has toid me: she doesn't naed to go on]y wants to se& lhat quack
" Brown, or she refuses to go She and mely neecl to ,go o counselmg We need tu get them mto counselmg What are
yourthoughts” S S : I e

852
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nR‘.E?%ﬁ“KJ"Emily | | Page 1 of 2

From: Michelle Davis Capps <mdaviscapps@gmail.com>
To: halman2B <halman2é@acl.com=
Subject: RE: HK/Emily
Date: Thu, May 18, 2017 11:50 am

I was confused when I received this e-mail because so many of the (uestions were the same in
your e-mail to me on 5/4/17. 1 responded to that e-mail on my phone & Tlater realized that it
dido't go through —sorry for the confusion.

Below is your 5/4/17 e-mail & 1 will do my best to answer your questions.

{ need you to provide me the name of the counselor you are seeing for the court ordered alienation
counseling and the date(s) you have met with him/her. The counselor is to be in contact with Dr, Heldt.

When ! emailed you the dates | wanted to have the girls this summer | had asked H.K. numerous times

~ if she was going to the chureh retreat. numerous times she told me emphatically "No." | asked her the

day before | sent you the dates and she told me she was not going- | emailed you the dates ! was taking
the girls this summer. The week after | sent you the dates | talked to H.K. When asked about the
misston trip and our trip her response irad changed. She told me that "Mom is making me go on the
mission trip. | don’t bave a choice.”. Can you explain this please. Either she was not being truthful or
your stance on the mission trip changed after you received the emall. By forcing her to go on this trip
you are taking my time.

| have told HK | want her to go 10 counseling. She has fold me she doesn't need to go, only wants o
see that quack Brown, or she refuses to go. She and Emily need to go to counseling. We need to get
them Inte counseling., What are your thoughts?

“DEFENDANTS
Thank you

First off I need you to be very eareful in your wording and your statenients ta others regarding
what fhe court ordered and what it did not. Vou and I both are to obtain counseling fo address
the issue of alienation with our children. The court did not find either of us in conteropt or

guilty of alienation. You making false or inflammatory statements is harassing and slanderous.

I have been seeing Dr. Helen Bayne since the beginning of April, 2017, I am sorry that you were
not made aware of this — I had made my attorney aware of this and I assumed that the
information had been passed oo to you and Anita. Dr. Bayne is aware that she and Dr. Heidt
will be in communication. -

{ think that the confusion you are having in regards to Haley Kathryn going to Montreat js your
confusing it with the “mission trip” in your talks with her. The high school mission trip was sat
for Julyl6-July22 in Gain esville, Georgia. Haley Kathryn never wanted to go on this mission
trip and we never had any plans for her to go on this trip. Mentreatis from July 23 — July 29.
Just as a point of information the high scheol mission trip has now been cancelled - I am not
sure of the reasons.

1 am following the orders of the court and Haley Kathryn & Emily will begin counseling when
Judge Holmes selects their new therapist. Any recommendations by that therapist for

https://mail.2o |.com/webmail-std/ ﬁn—USfPﬂﬂtMGS?SSSge 8/14/2017



w REPHRK Bmily S S  Page20f2

- additional counseling w1th you or all of us will be followed At thlS time ] do not feel that it'is
“appropriate for Haley Kathryn or Emily to see any’ ‘other the,raplsts other than: the one Judge
. _Holmes selects, : .

T he glrls and I are gomg to fhe mountams w1fh my fa mxly durmg the first week in: August

I hope that I have answered your quesuons please How answer mme

rWhat are: :,rou reqmnncr ofHaley Kathryn n ordar fnr you to buy her a car"

-Just fa. chrxfy the Facebook pave “I-Iorry C‘ounty for sale o1 trade any‘thmg g0 es” clearly shows o
_ the exact-date and timéany items-are posted. The furmfure that youwere. sellmg wds posted on
"Thursday, May 11" at6: 00am: Lassume that this is doxne to help any potentml huyers know' - :
how Iong somethmg has been avaﬂable zmd 1f they’ mwht have: Toom to barter or negotxafe .} o

o '_;From halman?.ﬁ@acl com Lmallto haimanzé@ao com’i
- Sent: Monday, May 15; 2017 1143 PM - '

B mgawgcagg @gmall com
'_Subject HKfEmlly

a I am going o see Stephanie Fiemmg about pcsable counseling for H K and myseif

- You stated that you had airaady made plang for the week i in Augus’tl warst to {ake the glr!s out of town What :
. -are your exact plans/dates/locanon? [ dor'twant fo chose the same lacation. What'dates'are you not busy with
) thie glris? Wnen | asked before 16 s.wrt‘ch weakends WIth you, fwas’ ade clear to me. that all of your weekends
O wers planned wWith thmgs and th-at you can nct swﬂoh What tjmes thls summer du you ot have Hilhgs
. 'pianned? o ol e :

_:HKtold me. that she Was, ceﬂnltely notgoing to Montreat numerous trmes She told me aﬁarl sentycu the
> summer. vacatlon trnes {hat you were "Makmg her QD * and she "dIdn 1 have a c‘nosce" Can you explain this?’

-~ Hal.

_ o - : ' 654 ' o ' _
- hitpsi//mail.ao].com/webmail-std/en-us/PrintMessage - : _ Rnannt
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‘Your Blue Cross Blue Shield -
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. hpotter@amtaﬂcyd[aw com
L _F_rom. ' S ',Renee Nye <renee@bntta|n!awf irm.com»
- @Sén‘t: e o ~ Friday, May 12, 2017 2: 7 PM B
o ¢TI o afloyd@anitafioydlaw.com
Co - '_bpotter@amtaﬂoydlawcom :
Subject: - . RE: Capps vs. Cagps .
Good afternocn,

. Mlchelle Was saelng Dr Helen Bayne (843 902~47?3) but bas recenﬁy began seemg Dr Ehzabeth leon (843~ i
_ -455~2258) L _ . . S RN .

-Dr. Bayue had recummmded e:ther Edward Cormor (843 268-0580) or Mﬂl‘lﬂ Wocdward {843 410~4943) as

" possfole counse]ors for 1‘.he glrls PR L L

o "_ i wﬂl put: this mformatmn in }etter f@rmat as wel] next week when. Mary Madlson is back in the oﬂice, but I .
: ,.,,‘wan’ced to reapond @ your ]etter wzth the names of her ccrunselor R _ o

Renae Nye [ F’ara!egai to Mary Madlson En{tam Langway, Esq

.| Brittain Law Firm, P, A
| 4614 Olgander Drive -~
| Myrtie Beach, SC 29577

| M B43:449.8562°

7§ | F843.945.9341
A I:nnttamlawfrrm com -

= @ ’f -

T GIRCULAR 230 DISCLDSURE ,'Pu erisure campfzance wﬂh requzremgnta zmposeu by the IRS we, mfnm you !:hczt any US Fedem[ Tax adurce
L tentdined i This somarnication findliiding ani. aﬂachments} is not intended or written 1o be wsed, and cannot bevised, fur the, - pUTPOSE: of o
S mweitling penajtws under the miernal revenue code or (I promating, markehng or reanmmendmg to.another garty any tradasactionior matter
- :addressed hereiri. Thzs admce mmf rw! be fanuarded {ut}uar than. wtthm the. taxpayer fo. w}uch it ;’ws been. sanfj umhm.lt En.LI‘ e.rpress wr:tien. -
- *cor[sent. . A S L . .
2 'PRTVEEGEAMD CCZNFEENWMY ﬂOTIC.‘E Thzs camnnrmmﬁan {hcb.zdmg gy atiac%unents} 15 bet’ng san‘t by or on beha{f qﬁa iawger or
i g cortoin. conﬁcleniml br legalm pnut‘!eged mfcmauam The sender doesnat miend 1o waive: any privilage;ingh ding the.
T ak welignt privilage’ that may afiach to {his domrrunication: f you ang naf the interided reap:ant youarg Rot authamed tointardept,
" redd, pﬂnt, refainy; copy;, funuard or disseminate this communication, o you hr.we mcemed th:.s commumcahun i tznrur, ptease nonljy iha
sender xmmedtm‘eiy by email and delete thzs camnmmcahon and aH cop:es S : R

' From: aﬁoyd@amtafloydIaw cony [mal}to aﬂoyd@amtaﬁoydlaw com] )

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2017 12:50 PM :
“ To: Mary Madison Langway <marymad150n@brittam$awf'm com:>; Renge Nye <renae@bnttamlawf’rm com>

© o ce-Bridget Potter»:hpctter@amtafloyd{aw corhz
':Sub,!ect Capps vs. Capps :

 Please see attached letter. Highr'i-mpc.rtanfce. Thank you.
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o _':,Vra Email . o
- The. Honorable Jan Brornell Holmes

- Judicial Centsr Complex :
401 Cleland Street Suite 238.

_ ANITA R. FLOYD -

P A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATICN
-V Telephone: (843) 246-3206

' " Facsimile: (843) 248—71 73

- 1“1'15ThirdAw.a.nua S : = PGBox1482 o
7_'Gonway,8(329528 T S CDnWBy, 80295281482

o Déc‘emrber_ 5, 2017 :

P. 0. Box 479

N __Georgetown SC 29442

: :R Mlchel%a Daws Capps Ve Joseph Harold: Capps -

Case Number 2@14—DR 26 1563

g "_Dear Judge Halmes

You may recall this case whlch wasa. RTSC you heard from January—

o 30 February 1, 2017, with arf agreement being reached on the third day of court. .
—.Oné-of the provisions of the agreement was that the names of proposad
_=oounselors to dddress alienation issuas of the children would be submitted to
o you, and that you would make the f‘nal decrsron regardmg where the chsldren
S f'-wauld attend counsellng L . ‘ o o

Mary Madison. has proposed the foilowmg counselors for the children
‘m Edward Conner . _
“® Elizabeth-Nixon _
n Marra Woodward :

ltontacted these: counselors bacause [ wanted to know: if they spema{lzed

o aiienatian issues;as | undérstand that is now a.recognized sub-specialty.in
“mental health issites. | have vet to hear back fromi Edward Coriner. Marie
. Woodward told rie that she-does fotwork with children and she does not handle
- alienation jssues. Eli zabeth Nixon also told 'me that she does not handle. - o
e _gahenahon issues, ‘but she suggested Tamara Willard or Wanda Lucas. Tamara . .-
o U Willard does notspecuahze in.alienation, and athough ‘Wanda-Lucas indicated
. thatshehas handled alienation Issues, afterr reviewing- her websrte l do nat thmk
B that is-a: spemalty oreven a sub*specralty of hers

Please note tha‘r | am not den;gratmg any of the counselors namad

) abave Indeed, they all enjoy very fine reputatrons However, a counselor who'
 specializes in addressirg ahenaﬁon rssues is what you have lndlcatad s needed
. in th!s instance. ' :
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®

THOMAS C. BRITTAIN
MARY MADISCN BRITTATN TANGWAY

THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, PA.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
4614 OLEANTIR DRIVS
MYRTLE BRACH, SOUTH CAROLINA 29577

A, PRESTON BRITTATN
T. CASE BRITTAIN, JR.

May 17, 2017

VIA EMALL

Anita Floyd

1115 Third Avenue
Conway, 8C 28526

RE: Hal Capps vs, Michelle Capps
Case No.: 2016-DR-26-931

Dear Anita,
Ky client hes been in counseling with Dr. Helen Bayne. Her first appointment with her was on April 3,

2017; April 12, 2017; April 20, 2017} May 1, 2017 and she also has an appointment scheduled for today,
May 17, 2017. Dr. Bayne has been given a copy of the final order and is fully awsre of the purpose of

sounseling,

Dr. Bayne has not heard from Dr, Heidt but would be happy to hear from him, Her contact inft ormation is
843-347-6954.

Dr. Baynie recommends that the girls wonld benefit from seeing one of the following counselars. It fsmy

understanding that these names will be submitted to Judge Holmes for her choosing of wha the children
will counsel with: Edward Conmnor (843-268-0580; Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Marie

Woodward, LPC (843-410-4943),

My client has informed me that Mr. Capps took it upori himself to sohedule a counseling appointment for
himself and Haley Kathryn with Stephanie Fieming. Kindly zdvise why he felt the need to do so as Judge
Holmes was specific in her direction that she be fhe one to choose the connselor for the chitdren.

1 witl discuss the brick columms with my client and address that issue in a separate lefter.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, | ook forward to hearing from you soon.

Very truly yours,

TEE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.4.
C{Pﬁ‘%‘ B lbbw@nwm&\

Mary Madison Brittain Langway

MMBL:rin

Enclosures: as slated
ce: Michelte Capps (via email)
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' 'RE chhelle Davis’ Capps Vs, Jnseph Harold Cappb

.Dedf Amta

AR & am rcspondlng to the iattt:rs you have wmten sn the past ssve.ral wccks

JULAAN DERRICK

Attumey atLaw

uur.o-u._......._._-“-

DORSEY W. STRICKLAND

S _ : © Associate Attorney . - : o
142247 Ave: oo : o S - : - (843} 48B-0881
P.O Box 286 R L " Tax: (843) 4880884 -
'Gonway;.SG'2952_6- k " I L . o wadllaweom
, - May 24, 2018

. VIA EMAIL ONLY |
Anita FiLee
- [115 Third Avenue

B Conway, §C 29526

Flle No. 2014-DR-26-1563
. DEFENDANT’S )

EXH!BI_;_.: .

s jIn regards to bs c}uid support and ahmony oheoks my alsen’; has opencd 8 separate goconnt so he
o oan dapomt the.checks. lnto it. Tha acoount is at TD Bank anri ihe aocaunt number i

- -#4346532751

'_ T ragards to thc penis pmtu:e ha accrdentally sent to his youngest rshﬂd1 both my client and

wmyself find his cxplanahon quite unbelievable, T am dssuming he and his wife wera toge(her at

- ‘hom talking about fhe elcotrodes planted on hig genitals, which makes one question why did ha. o

have to.send her & penis picturé? Why not pu]l up thé picture and say, “Look-at this, darling,”

o R 'Furtheri thnre are no elec:trodas on the pems n the plu’mfef What was h¢ showmg hcr'?

i Accordmg to Mmhelh: shc wag wn:h himn whem hewas in dzntal schooi and WS invcﬁwd ina

-+ pudendal nerve conduction study. The elevtrodes were not attached to his gemtaha, but: placed
- ona nerve inchis {eg, which relayed feelings into his gemta] areq, sa lns story waspoteven - -
- 'factual nor dzd 1’1 make RO sense. . o . o

Emlly did st the pmmm It wag w:ry ups&ttmg to har ’Your client could have chosan 1o call

Michelle and ask her to. intercept the text, but he didn’t, The last téxt kmily got from-him before.
- the pems picture at 8:07 p.1m. Was & text at 7:22 a1, that morning, so he was not fexting her
- earHer in the evening. It ig hard fo imagins after twelve (13) hours, she was still in the “stream” -
*with:Shari and the text was inadvertently sent to her. He did text her an-apology the next
* morning when she was in school. He sent a very inappropriate picturé, while he mtended foor
'i ':not to- the same ohild thut waa- exposed 10 his pamogmphy in the past.
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o ',JD/G{G | o
J_c Mihelle I.)awa Capps (vxa emall

Anita Floyd Lee
Page 2- '

_Mayzd,.sz'l'S_ "

_Ihswe not responded to the comments you hays made coneeming Michelle and her ailegcd
alienation, You wrote in your lstter of April 26™ that “he’s been trying to have a relationship with -
. his children for yesrs and thet wes made impossible afier the pasties’ separation.” 1 belleve he hns

worked hard to alienate himdelf from His chifdren. However, he chooses to blame Michelle,
instead of rcalmng it is his own negleéct and bad behavior that has harmed his relationship with

~ his children. Itis difficulf sometimes for psople to takc respon51b1hty for damag[ng relatmnslnps o : o
- and {{ is much eusier to blarne somcone. else - , .

, “x’ou: elient has nct exermsed any of his Weekand V!Sltat]Dl'l for over a year He did not exercise. 7

- iy of this summér visitation fast. year and did not request any time for this surnmer.” Further; he
‘i planning a trip to Ttaly with his wife beginning fune O™ arid will pmbably be out of the country .

. for Father's Day veekend. He got engaged this past year and never discussed { prior withthe =

girls, NOF Were: they informed of, ok invited fo his W edding Hs allowed posts about his weddmg

- tobe on social media priorto tei]mg his children he had gotten- married, He failed to exercisehis.
- Christinag visitation, and he.did not give the gn‘ls anything for Gbns‘tmas I guess he thought that_' '.
- Waﬂ app:opnaira for children that, needed to’ be ln D88 oustody‘ __ _ _

> 'I have tnstructed Michelle: to. Eﬁf fhf:m in'to see Kf:n Smiith, They need o sfart seemg someona Lo N

s “and gur tiot being ablé to apree 16 sondeone should rot be preventirg them from. recmvmg the-
A -'caunsehng they need Y’our chenus ﬁnc to contact Ken Smlth and part:mpate as he Sues ﬁi.

B :Wxth kind regards, Iam

| Very 1?1;132-34'01_._1?3,:
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: 'i bﬁotter@amtaﬂoydiaw com |

\ From:. L - ,afloyd@ anltaﬂoydlaw com
Wsent. - . friday, May 25, 2018 11:28 AM
CTer oo - jdi@jdllewcom. :
Co . bpetter@amtafoydtawcmm o
Subject. T 'Cappsvs Capp '
© Julaan,

My client does not agree “with Ken Smath Further the court ordar requnres that ‘che part:es ercher stbmit the issue of
‘counseling to the court or that. they dgree. If your client continues to fgnore my ciient’'on this Isstie; it will only be one B
“more issug at the upcoming Rule to Show Cause. | have suggested numerous counselors, ail of wherm have goad
éxperience with afienation. Ken Sealth is more of @ marriage touniselor dnd he does not SpECIBIIZE Try allenation Further,
g have na ldea What your chent’s relatlonshlp is or may be wlth Ken. :

Please res cansnderthts unflateral demston and '.n5tead let": together get tms addressed Thank you

~Anita Floyd Lee

- Attorney AtLaw

‘afloyd@anitafloydlaw. com

1415 Third Avenue

~ Conway; SC 29576

843~ 248»3206 o
@43 248-7173 FAX

CONFTD ENT[AL & PRIV}LEG ED ' ) :
Unless otherwise indicated or ohvious From the nature of ths abqve commumcatlon the: mfﬂrmamn cantamad herem may be -

| anattorney- cli&mpﬂvﬂeged and confidential iaform ation /wcrk product The communication is :ntend ed for the use of the -
lndmdua or entity named above. if the r‘eadar of this transmissicn is not the infended recipient, ycru arg hereby ncufied that
any dlssemmauan distnbutmn or, copying af thlS ccrmmumﬁaﬁcn is strmt]y pruhﬁ:nted '

if ynu hava recewad this commumcatl on in BITOT OT.RIE not sure wherher itis prwrle ged pleasa :mmed 1ately notify us by
: return e~maﬂ and destroy any CO]JlES, e]ectmmr;, pap et or atherwwe, wh1ch yuu may have thhls cc:mmumcatlon
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o

©  ANITAR.FLOYD
" APROFESSIONAL CORPORATION - -

Telephone: (843) 248-3206
IR  Facsimile: (843} 248-7173. e
1415 Third Avenue S o o P, Q. Bax 1482
Conway, SC 29826 o B Conway, SC 20528-1482.

CAprii2s,2018
Hand Deljvered . o
. Ms. Julaan Derrick

- 1422 Fourth Avenue
- Cenway, SC 29526

"‘Re: Michelle Davis Capps vs. Joseph Harcid Capps - -~ - - g -_‘-:EJ(HIBIT o

 Case Number: 2014-DR-26-1563 Vo o

© Deaf Julaan:

SRR Y youmaybe aware, 'r'MiG_H'éllé-C'ap'ps contacted her ban k’rz‘ahd"ibésiicﬁaIl'.'y-'.pu'ti a

B _ th‘_oAl‘d. on-her acceunt sothat no.one could make a deposit nto the account except her (or

o 's:amedhe- -a{t*her direction). _L)-n‘_tﬂ_th’af’.gﬁ_’c;inf:jﬁ__‘tﬁrjﬁle.,r m'y;di'ien”t_héd ',.a-rfa-ng-e.d_ffc’r:fdir{e_}_t_':t-'-{ EE
- deposits fo satisfy his alimony and child support obligation: “From the timeofthe -~~~

- parties’ agreament; until about one year ago, there Was never & prablem with my ¢l

indication that ry client had attempted to do anything other than.make & depositinto

S her account, though even if he'had, that would -ha_vlerh.ever; been ?_e(libWed ba—sje-df_-upo N

. the rules of the banking Industry.

© . - making 4 direct deposit into-Ms. Capps' account. Further, there was neverany . - .

" fnifially, my client went to ancther branch to make the depost, butMichelle has -

- -:i'g.p,paizentl:y'n‘ow made sure that every branch-knows that my client is notto make a. *
. deposit Irto-her account, - At my direction, Dr. Gapps is not geing to mail the checks,;as |

. pelieve that would-result in Ms. Gapps filing an affidavit that my client was not fimely. 1 - '

" may have included s in my client’s affidavit in support ofa RTSC, but fdidnot, | -

~  believe Ms. Capps® dctions could be interpreted 2s a fotm of harassment which would- S
.- support the court finding her in-confempt. L0 T It

T I we cannot .se-fsé"l'.vé-"tghlé,‘h{y t:li-.e_n_f._w.i'l%i_}és'kﬁtﬁ-atithé..'cc'g'uj # allow for payment

' through the-clerk; with his payment beirig reduced by the amount.he will have to pay for

L ‘going through the clerk of court. . As this is-a most unidque issus, | have no idea whata.

- courtwill do, though the timing of Ms. Capps’ actions carresponds closely to the timing -
- of Dr: Capps givinig his now-Wife Sherri a diamond engagement fing. 1am not - L

- Insinuating anything, as [ have no'idea why Ms: Capps made this decision; | only know. g
that the timing is curious. -~ T g - e L

" Dr. Capps would like to continue making direct d eposits, though if that is riot
'r’a-c_:ceptable;,_'pmés'e prov‘ide a reascnable alternative. 'D_r,'.Capp."s;-dg_;gg-'::ﬁoiw_am-m'_ o

1
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mterao’c with Michelle Capps at all, as those mteractlons have not been productlve srnoe,
‘the parties separated from one another. Thus, dmppmg tHe-check off at Her house is.

- not.a.viable alternative: for Dr. Capps Mailtng cer‘m‘"ed checks is an additional cost

which {g-unriecessary when he can arrange for a ‘transfer from hig account to her

; account or can make the dspositon the way home from work.”

I am sendmg you the ahmony and child support check whrc:h s due Ms Capps

' for the ‘month of May: Please deliver this to her and-ask her for a better and more.
. permanent afrangement for the following months. If therg is some concera she has
. about the deposits into her account, Farm sure the bank will assure her that my chent
;has no way to access: her account even it he had such a ciesure

I appremate your ass;stance
'[-n:_k_ln:d ' reg'ards,-' I am

Yours Very Tru!y —

AFUbJp . i . AnitaFilee

o Enclosuras : N
' c:c Joseph Harold Capps -

' B65
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ot

'.Iet him know ‘f .

B i:ctter but you shc:uld :
B have calied me to pick

: | you'up; it's my day. |
giuled: have;gattie‘n yo
t
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: ;;mi[y they're airsady. 1
® there walting for you




Tue, Jan 23, 7:48 AM .

"‘!,K?_.)Y' gﬁﬂ& :t [.E’\_E ‘7’ G) J{mﬁm ¢ n a'

_ -_-Tu&,r_lan 30,"3’:-4‘-}‘PM e

- HeydadEmilyand Freally . .-
- miss wand wanna spend tlme _
L with U arid heither of ushave a
~lot of homework tonight so we.
- thought: we: could meet at-
"+ fiestamexicana. around 6: 30
Lor7 Just whatever works best
. foru. |'would iy hke forit to..
justbe the three of us since e
; =’we have 80 much to talk about

and we' haven t seen . m so

| @ Eong Iloveu

T-Ll'e,.. d ah _-3 0, 5:38 PM

fz DEFENDANT S

. E(H?ﬂ“

s do)
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W8 Spriat 2 T qoePM ©T Ty A D)

@ 8 @ o
HK AEmly .
Wed, Jan 31, 813 PM
AEmaIy
@ '.St|ll Want to do dlnner'? E

oS it weid e grea it
. et e ot o werle Gl
@1: \a@cmlmwaﬁ@@@éi;;

HK
1 love and miss u but | realty -
. wanted itto be just the three- :
~ofus and it's also la‘cefor me., |
o ga tonight becduse | hava'
nomework and [ want to see.
,@, the super moon

A Emlly

wiﬁwauld,h&aato-b.aduehmb;edu%
thg twcmf usput callxou gi\fe k
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all Sprnt = L 408PM % sy

<® @ e o

SRR A Emily
) Tue, Jan 30, -5:38 PM

;L i"t;ﬂ_r:r*’l" s @fva:-aﬂca@@ﬂm

S {Eﬁﬁ@"i'ﬁ r’ﬁiﬁffﬁ@ﬁh:’:‘.j_g
2 'g @iﬁ@:—a[ aafivadeipinalolceos B

LB B ¥

| heed hemie | Imfi@g;maﬁ
1% y

OHK _ . ,

= .Sorry forthe short nottce we T

- ‘had both realized thatwe = -
dldn t hava homework tonlght
- ~softwould have been '

-~ convenient. Whenand where :
< would v like to meet? andpls: "~
o ek mama and. dadathatwe S

,@! sayhl B
Tue .mn:-:o 834 PM o

T e e e

defetomighi e |

m GB) }EMPJSqu @ SR
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ofl Spriay = 5 © O moBPM C % pav )

© B B o

HK AEmily
Wed, J&n 31, 513 PM
A Emily
o) -, St Want‘tddo dinner’? :

(e Wik wwondlg) e oottt
| R foeiratons cﬁfw@‘t‘" nmk
%@\W@ Cﬁﬂm@i &l ﬂ)@ﬁﬁ. Ei
m Y

HK
| love and miss u byt realty -
. wanted it to be just the three |
~ofus and it's also late for me.. |
to go tonight because | have §
homework and | want o see
;@ _‘_the super moon

A Emsly

Mwould,iike.ip b,a‘vheﬂLt.tze,Jusxw
_the o of us but can you gve

m & ( IMBSSEQQ '},7
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A Sprlat B . 408 PM - 7} Iy

w @ @& o

COHK o AEmly
| ,gg 't-he super moon
A meiy

§ WOUId like to have lt be JUSl'
the two of ug but can you g:ve F

3 A_'me a rrde 16 dmner

(& rfhw rmitmﬁg -
ilm@t-;rwﬁ‘ﬁﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁmmvﬁ We |
ERmeta 710 orae i, - |

A metiei et

' A Emuy

IR _:Couid you pick e up there°

. Or from my house

: @ On your way to f:esta
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il Spelnt 5 4 " 4110 PM -+ 3 53%0m_r

© @B @ @
HK A by
] Toyrewmaiert s

_;_iiw\'m Hmdfﬂtr:n, ‘mm‘ W{: WII' |

ier &) ksMessage o | @}
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P Nosence T . o

B jf"_’=Laok dad th[s is kmda
- abolt what hk texted
- 1o you. 4 ccmpletely
B support and agree wn:h
\ '_*'_.everythmg that she j
- .gald. Thereis a line’ and
“you have crossed jt
with brmgmg hertoall ¢
g - of aur events. [ 'am sick
o S and tired of her -
- showling up’t@thmgs
P W }"raj; expect to be

I

e L,,..‘?..!-.'-‘-—;_-.n'-:._-h.—.;_.‘ o .J.,.-,..:l,.;:_.;.,;..:':-__’_
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okl Spring = o 4:12 PM 3 BQG-JL-

- HK A Emily : o

RN

HK

 are we aver gonna be able to
P spend time: alone with u -

( L@Sﬁtﬂ]ﬁ?ﬁff r@:@@@a ﬁm@"
- vipedk et Cleve?, W @i
mew mm&; Eufw

' 'ﬁx' ,
. what ru enmsmmng needing _
to happen forus to spend tlme _: o

@ aione wrth yom

: We dlove1o tal\e yau to dmner .

£91
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off Speint 5 4 4112 P T} 52

© @ @ o o\
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HK A Emily

Thu, Mar 15, 11:08 AM

Ht-ﬂfl tmb{f'lﬂﬂl g%iﬁiﬁ@ d : \
IWetet i Wingt dime acrg,@* ]
| Ui e il e (e

- your AEeh SiErs e ve. Floass
Rieiincto @j‘r\‘é@l”tr,»{u:} L
kU.OMU ﬁi*@ 0 80 yow s ib@ﬂm E

[PTR Ny

HK
- I'rmrnot comfortable with U
~coming at this point because |

want us to.work on our |
- relationship more before u™ -
;@ - start coming to-my events. - .

Th, Mar 18, 3:41 PM

- @ ;_;Me ag_e @

et e o
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';_' pomt but thank ufor o
-~ understanding and i 1"1c:nF3*B1
c:an seeu scon :

L M_cp',:,qpr:ao',nozzz_AM-: o
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eeooo T-Mobile UE @ 9:46.PM
Q) Search

alsh started 2

:Td youd Emf!y

;:Emﬂy R
Toyou & dad
. [‘ "'Where r u




L -vs-

~ STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA - IN-THE FAMILY COURT-OF THE

)
'C-OUNT’Y OF HORRY ) FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
3 Case Number: 2014-DR-26-1563 -
Mlchelle Daws Capps ) S
i * Plajit] ﬁ‘ 3 AFFIDAVIT OF ATTORNEY'S FEES
) -
loseph l-larold Capps Jr, : )
Defendant. 1

Personally appesred before me, Anita Floyd Lee, Esquire, 3 who after ﬁrstbemg dul}r sworn, :
deposes and states as follows _
1 That she 1s the attorney for the Defendantm the above tlt]ed actmn o
2. That she was ad_mtted to the South Carolma Bari m 1985 and smce that time has
been engaged i private practlce, and presently is a Sole practltloner in Conway,
South Carolina. o _
3. :That she is ac‘avely engaged in trial practice. practwmg in the Farmly Law area.
s “That she mcorpc:rates herem Rule 4:{)7 of the South Camlma Appellate Caurt Rules S
| _ "Rule 15 of eh Rules of'Professmnal Conduct and further call the attentmn of: tl e
o Court'to the holdmgs in N:enow Vs, N;enow, 268 5, C 161 252 S.E. 2nd 504 {(1977), .
o .Atkm.son Vs, Atkmson, 279 S 4454 309 SB" 2nd 14 (SC flpp 1983’), E‘DM VS, TAM, 307
S 471,415 S5 2 812 (1992); Sherman vs, Sherman, 307 $.C. 280; 414 S.5. 204809
o (SC‘ App 1992] and Glasvcockv G!czsscock 304S.C. 158 403 SE Z“ﬁ 313 (1991)
7' _concermng the factors and, cmtena which should be consxderad in settmg of ..
attorneys fe.es ] rely upon the dlscretum ofthls Court in determmatlon ofthe
amount Qf fees based among other thmgs, upon the Courth file, the Court s _
) iknowledge ofthe lmgatmn between the part:les) whlch reﬂects the nature, extant
8 and. dlfﬁculty efthe serwce.s rendered the tlme nec&ssarsly devoted tor t‘ne case thie
. '.beneﬁmal results accc:-mpllshed the fact that there is no contingency compensatmn
. in domeshc relations cases, the pmfessmnal standmg ofcounsel and- the fees
- -,customanly charged in this area for similar lega services. _
6. That sheis mformed and belleves that durmg the preparatmn ofthls case, the time ‘.
- ..spentas set forth more fully herembelow was hecessary for the protectmn ofher

llent 5 mterests

y DEFENDANT‘ 3

&85




7. That the underéigned .in' acc‘otdance Mth her time and expefise r’e'cbrds' which' are

' maintained on a- dal}y basis, states to the Court that she hag necessanly expended
'-:.84 63, hours in. the preparatlon ofthls ‘maotidn; that: she c:harges $350 o per hour,

' I .and that she has 1ncurred cosLs totahng $646 ?'S fm“ a total amount of Fees mcurredr :
by client of$30 267. 42, ' ' '

8 ‘That based on the tlma necessan]y devoted to thls case and the other crxtena w’mch -

_have been held to be relevant in the sethng af attorney s fees, costs and smt money, R

“and the fact that the unders:gned on behat fofher chent raquests ‘that this- Court
| 8 review the: ﬁ]e herem together with this. Afﬁdawt and that the Court award unto _
. _ryour Afﬁant a sum whzch may be determmed by tbe Court to he reaSOnabIe as '
E '-attcrney 'S fees, costs and su1t meney, and that the Plambff be reqmred to pay the '_ .

o _.'same W]thm & reasonable ume and may be determmed by thls Court
. :FURTHE-R.’._I‘HE'AFFIAN"T;SAYETH:"N_"OT.V RE /]

'.':--An.fta'Pﬁyd:"- be

" SWORNTOAND SUBSCRIBED before

- B96
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P

~ This is btw.you & the
- girls as it is ur time with
- them & does not
- Involve me. You make
- nn affart to fostar anv
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no effort to foster any
type of relationship btw
‘the girls & ur parents
~therefore having them
- show up to take or pick

. them up from school

E makes them very

_uncomfortable. Inaliof
“ur trips out of town &in -

ol of thedays & -

_ . opportunities-u have
- chosen to.miss you
" havenever once had
~anyonefillinforyou:
S with any respon31blflty o
. Ifeelthat ushould

7 think of what is inthe o

 best interest of the gn‘ls’” o

. -not just u getting your

_ _..j._'l__-way HK called your

S ,ih:nrmhh:: - c:nnl(a \wrf

ST



parents - spoke w/
both of them -

expressed how she
would like to see them -
‘soon but that she d|d
~not need a ride
“tomorrow to or from -
~school. HK has had AP

Lang homework & a
ton of AP Euro

~ homework to complete”_
- Emtly has her English
- EOC exam tomorrow
- morning --neither of
~ them need any stress
- of drama

FE AT TS T ARLEAITSE - _r_: 5 Rl T R, e
R .A:‘__L: ,!?.,: ¥ _:.4‘__ 2 ’_a!’r ik Oy
A £2 H| Y
e ol

i ,,. ARk et 1] 2 A
E ; i S L ?f‘-i"
L

!l

1]
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correct????

FYl-bothgiishave -~
“told me that they rnot
- getting rides home:
~fromschool fromur
parents &thaturfine

‘with this - SO

isthis
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70 AM

Michelts

Tuesdey [: 5% P

HK was I Car wregk, he was the onj
ONe-ln th 85 A ity by 5 Hag d
along iy ~UrDs oy thay don't
hava ¢ lgnated Areas tg gpy Just wajt
Unttif thy flagged down g then Stog, She
S@nced doyy, & When $hé ook she
Meallzed {f 2 bty wae topped, Sha tHeg to
Teak hard'bufsﬁﬂ' hit thg bug, She ag
e initfaily but Started 1 feel sora $0
ak herta Beag, Urgent o get checkey
OUL & they sajy she wag fin & hag
Infur; esjfraawre_s fust g Ing: Bot}y aly
8IS want Off & tha whil front ey ofh
caris Stashed i, .. Wear oy tty stem ity
totaled Passengers O the bug Slaliiey
they were infured g\, @ taken to ¢,
0splial to he checlks t: Othep
Eassengery fieary them Iaug‘:'ng Maklng
atem aty e.y‘v.g;em'ﬁna bUt wey,
7 Just daing i fnr the Money:| EMmafled
as.wall ¢, esu tf}iat you receive this
& are 8

Thuruday 1053 pay

- Jeffwas g iy o ehind this Morfing - g

P estatapte g Wil jet Ukng W wvhen wa .

oOme, { haye & been 1oy thiafyg OU are trylng.
o tell pag plethaﬂdfd 't telfy about Ernify

having her e wisdom teag, "emaved g tha
P+ This hag hap, a e
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S % 20% 00D

«0000 Sprint =

RN, JuI28,8B9AM

B Good mornirig sweetheart hope you're
feeling OK. It's very very important that
you rest do not be active and make sure -

you are eating well. Rest is the'best thing. 1 S

B it would be good to gooagle injury after
B oirbag deploys or what to expect aftera-
S car accident ‘

| th A“94,314PM
Hey HK. Just trying_tdée‘e héwhycd"'re
doing after your wreck and how Emily is
B cdoing after her WT appointment yesterday. 1
BE | fove you both . N

SO peliversd

FORE oI ~ BT




o v - August1g '
he . ' 359 PM - Edit

B { e L L P

+ *‘."ﬂ;

Ve

- Tue, Nov 21, 10:38:AM

I ey girls would you ke to
| Never Thanksareing dinner at
B OO0 WAL e o Trractay?

B (oo A0t miss vou both, B8

g i'i'f,v:iréc"i-'.f 'Nﬁv-éré'."‘1‘2&1?2?{*3; T

ey ging nhm g uu? i migs you |
and would like to see VOU over
s Ilz“h&*-qumm i}dek dex 0 A

- 5 W“-‘d.NWH,sggpM -
R
i lave for tha thres of us to |

- “det together over the break
@ and { 'I'QVe and mlss you too
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st gomg 3 eat
wat 12t wanld be S
kool el gee

L T
~Tcan tfomarrow because i
-already made plang ‘since yeu
- haver'theen try{ng toseq Us.
. beforehand or safd anythlng
L about thanksgw ng '

S ‘lwatﬂdhketo seeyou th
@ i break though J mfss U

L Can lt be the three of us’? And
@ wha‘rabmut Sunday farIUnch‘?

77
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HK A EmilY

HK

A qan ttomorrow becausa |

already made plans since you. . -

‘haver't been trying to see us
_baforehand or sald aﬁythmg
_‘about thanksgfvmg

[ would like to see you twts
breakthoughlmissy

R Vi ace you frec - [

K o

Eﬁ

:Can |t be T:he threa of us’? And

what about Sunday for unch’?

. Wed N0v22 eoapm .
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¢ .§  «aliSprint % 9:48 PM L9 A% 4

Edit

< December 22, 2017
1:40 PM

TUTTTTIRNNTY W@ Y

Yesterday 5138 B

Want to go have dinner with
Elliott and | at fiesta on either
the 27th or the 28th?

Today 12:34 PM

T e v-fu;
Heyaweetieagt .m%
membgggg

e L
‘!-15t--'i)--'glk&“__.Jn2~ Ky ’ﬁ%'}.’l'-‘ff T

outofto
Lﬂs%hw{e iﬂ; g‘ g?é m«ggu-
e ;%tmasa{

L i h LI P
if;igqgm of gsavera $ lmesz%ég

an A
R m’m’iﬁ, )
nttos:

5
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witSprint = 9:49PM . 7 47%@E )4
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

28

INDEX

INDEX

WITHESS DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
MICHELLE DAVIS CAPPS

Ms. Derrick 8 150

MRS. LEE 104 202
DR. HAROLD M. HEIDT

MRS. LER 207 254

MS. DERRICK 237 264
SHERRY CAPFS

MRS. LEE 270 299

MS5. DERRICK 2990

EXHIBITS

NUMBER ISESCRIPTION ID EV
P-8 Email-In Re: Deposit checks Pg. 16
pP-9 Email-In Re: Counseling Pg. 20
P-10 Email-In Re: Ski weekend Pg. 38
P-11 Texts about Haley Kathryn Pg. 39
Fg. 12 Texts about J.V. Game and Hibiscus Pg. 51
P-13 Text-In Re: Ride for Haley EKathryn Pg. 57
p-14 Email~In Re: Father’s Day Pg. 60
p~15 Email-In Re: Summer visitation Pg. 66
P-16 Emil~In Re: July 7-11 trip Pg. 73
pP-17 Text~In Re: See»children Pg. 82

244
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

D-32

D-33

D-34

Email -In Re: September - events for girls
Communication—~In Re: Christmas

Chart for 2017

Financial Declaration of Plaintiff
Attorney Fee Affidavit

Email- 3-2~18 In Re: Child support
Email-In Re: Aggressive behavior

Fmail with Doctor Heidt

Letter 10-26-17 In Re: Deposits (Langway)
Email-5-7-18 In Re: Checks

Bank account of Plaintiff

Fmail-In Re: Counseling with Doctor Heidt
2017 Time Warner Cable records

Cailendar for 2017 and 2018

Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Eg.
Pg.
Pg.
Pg.
Bg.
Pg.

Pg.

B4

B8

02

102

103

196

251

254

108

114

119

186

219

272

245




Helen Bayne, PhD LMFT

235 Singleton Ridge Road
Conway, SC 29526
843-902-4773
843-347-6954

November 22, 2017
'To Whom It May Concern:
I tried to call Hal Heidt at Michelle Capps’ request several times. I got his

answering machine each time and left a message. I did not receive a return
call from h1m

Y o

Helen Bayne, PhD
LMET




Chat with dad

7N 4473007 BD430 AM - 4/4/2017 8:044L AM.

,Exp':brt Details:
Device Phone Numbar 1 (843) 222:2865
' Device Name hiés phone .
.Devlaa (8] 3ad92clffd4ﬁ2904f893ﬁ1ecd43d75eb02d135
Backup Gate Tuesciay,January 30,2018 9_22PM
Backup Dlrectary C’\Usem\user\AppData\Rcammg\Apple Computer'\Mobt eSync\Backup\33d92c1ffd4&52904f893ﬁ1ecd43d75&b02d._' :
| B 'i'OS_ o 1122 7 '
- 5 Current Tme Zone EUTC«US :00) Eastem Time {US & Canada} -

L ';,,,,,,Craated -W{th : IEXpIo:e_r VALIA0.
Pa rtl ci pa nts:

j +1.843- 251 8477, dad

: T'uesday. April 04..201 7
coghd AN
HK before you can go L need to talk to Dr Mrs. Chambers : e

Ha]ey Kalhryn Ce 7
B B:04 AM -

page 1 EXHIBIT

816




Chat with dad

/*‘) 471072017 G46:50 PM - 4/12/2017 929:02 PM

Export Detalls‘ ,
Dewce Phéne Numher 1(843) 277843 .

Device Na me h_k‘s phone.
, Devi:'cé- oo :S'adB?.clﬁd%SZBﬁéfSB}ffletd#Sd?SebO?._ﬂlaS
VBackup Date Tuesday. JanuaTy 30, 2018.9:22 PM _ _
) Bac;kup Dfrectcry C-\Users\u_c.er\AppDa’ra\Rnammg\,Apple Cnmputer\l’vlcbl eSync\Ba:kup\Badszclffdx@eszgocm%ﬁlecd43d75eb&?d
dos ez o ' A
. " .:Cun'ent ‘I”me Zone (UTC»DS 00) Eastem Tme (US & Canada)

- —rWCreated wnth . zExp;mervztmsw
Pamcrpants. -

+1 ,343@51—9477, dad

T Mondéy,Apﬁi '-|'o,zm.7 _
dad ' _

G - Hey sweetheartl can plck u up fram work and I'Il give U the o BB PM
' ) S spendmg moneythen 'Forthe trlp : o
| HaleyKalhrynCapps - .
S 53 PM
. dadd
¥ 556 PM
S -Tu@sdaﬁ gip'rﬂ 11,2017 -
L _ 527 PM
Hey sweethgart what'sup - S
. : Haley Kathryn Capp:: . - o
PR 535 PM
dad . _
Great, hope'you have enough money and [hape your phone stays .
£:50 P
chargedPPW :
Hale‘y Kathryn Capps

553 PM

Page 1’
87



Chat with dad & Emily

£ 4/8/2017 16:3955 AN - 4/8/2017 10:39:55 AM
Export Details:
‘ -Dewce Phone Number 1 (843) 222-2349
' Dewce Name “hK's phone
- 'Dev. celn. - Bnd92clﬁd4&52904f893ﬁlecd43d75ebOZdlaS

'Backup Date TUESday,JanUaI’y 30, 2018 5:22 PM

" -Backup Dlrectory C\LSEFS\USEﬁAppDEtE\RDamlﬂg\ApP]& Ccmputer\MoblleSync\Backup\aad92c1ffd4e£§29Mf&%ﬁlecd%d?sebozd

: TC;)S{'Z R 2122 7 |
o Current Tlme Zone (UTGOS OD) Eastern Tlme {US ) Canada}
Created with lE_X;_:lorer VALIA0 e

Parﬂcrpa n’rs-

+l 843~251 9477, dad

+1 B43-446-5040, Emily -

"7 EERR o S Sa‘t{eré‘V,f‘«.‘prﬂﬂS 2‘01’-?
B PR 'd"&d o : :

areyour plans? HK T stith haven't heard anything from Tom

Chambers about yOur tnp Ineed to get c[etalls beforeyou.

- go

Page 1
818

| fGood morning glrls ‘Wantto grabsome. iunch today7 What
L AEBBAMT



Haley Kathryn Capps

2:12 PM
dad
No problem can you cali me please #2112 PM
dad
D
(1]
=
;. B
e
o o 3 =
o
g r
. 9:52 P
Hey what's up | 9:52 PM
Monday, Apidt 17, 2017
.) 12:10 AM
ded
OK 1 love you and I'm getting back home tomorrow around six 1213 AM
dad
Hey getting ready to board 13:49%
Hatey Kathryn Capps
R 12:5§ FM
dad
Kk miss you £2:51 PM
1:45 PM
dad
Getting ready to taxi in Atlanta. “4:58 PM
5:00 PM




dad

6:07 ish 5:02 PM
’"‘] dad
Still n Jine for departure 5507 PM
dad
Hey sweetheart I'm dropping off family would like to see it for a £:50 PM
secend
ey Kty Gapos
7.05 PM
S o .

Pape 7



Haiey Kathryn Capps

7i31 PM

© HKIbetwe'rehaving ore fun thanyouare oo 8PN

Sftave D oL

m.ybs ) 8:57 P

'da.;;i ) R : :
L Heyl iove you. hope you Te havmg 3 great tlme caH me if you car R P
%9% - . Ll '

 Haley Kajhryn'Capps .

Kkbecareful B e mzePM
Haley Kalhryt\ Capps : '_ : .
' B 029 PM

3 Sunday, Apsl 18, 2017
déd . - D :

I S L 16:03 AM~

Happy Easter hope ut-going to church =

‘dad ' B '

. Callmeplease | o AH0AN

L | ' | 52%

Cposew o



1024 AM
-~ T0:24 AM
Saturday, Aprit 15, 2617
Haley Kathryn Capps
J Tl 47,25 0SE sar kM B4 PN -
¢ . Pheto C
o ﬂ 1moleycinpharer " -
- ~5:02 PM
® QY ]
- Leg oy soptsibarstonsgelnciunch o
muth-fﬂbcgh:n Ronl bl iyed
a QB © 6
’ ) _8:02 PM
dad
Qooaooops # . 6:05 P
Haley Kal"nryn Gapps
=H:08 FM
6:11 PM
| dad L
Can't show them 6.1 PM

o/

Page 4
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ﬁi{ ‘_ﬁ_ﬁ__\; W
By ::-g et

1022 AM




C

dad

 ad

- dac

L iust got home a httle bit ago I Iove you call me if you can ’conlght rF
: not no big deal hopa you stifl, have atot of cash Ola 5% $ $

dad

cad _ _ | .
GN IHove you - = o o 16w

Haley Kathryn Gapps S
: T e

10:22 PM

Great Hope you wnshed A Emliy a happy brrthday ’coday - -_ g 19"2? PM '

Haley Kathryn Capps . _
3t 10:23 PM

 Wednesday, Aprl. 12,2017

Hope u r having a good time. | ;

Haiey Kaﬂwn Capps

CodaPs -

414 PN

7._'dad'r _ . . o o . . T

4 P - 928 Ph‘ﬁ'

dad -

-Hai&? Kath n'C—ap}is-_,: : -
3 Bl - guEPM

Oh that's old. Have-fun'_ta'lk"tdyou laterlovéeyou . .~ . o 928 PM
- Haley Kathryn Gapps )
SRt C 320 PM

Page 2
824 -
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Chat with Hal

> A/2/2017 23034 PM - 4/2/2017 2:46:44 PM

Exb-d_-rt Details:
bevfce Ph'ohe- N'U'mber +1{843) 322-1671
Device Name- Mschelle Capps's iPhane _
Device 1D- 277ebcb'}'ddf3}.4bb5d4163dd0b18e$410f637‘7d8
o Backup Date Monday{ gctuber 22, 2018 1:06 PM.
Backu p Directory‘ C\Use.rs\user\AppData\Roam!ng\AppIe Cnmpu‘cer\MoblIeSync\Backup\?.'f‘?ebch?dde14bbSd4163dd0b13e8410f6
- ".:-“35'. . ' .12-.,0-1' o ' o
.CUrrent Tlme Zane {UTC~05 oo) Eastern Time {us & Canada)

_Craated wzth |Explorer V4,260
Pa rt1c1pants

+1 342«251—9477 Hal ;

H‘al. . .
Please tell HK to br ng the car over and she is not gomg aut w1th O 2;:;0-_,;54- S
herfnends this aﬁternoon - . _ . R

7 , H-a!

You need tc: take her phone away from her: a<: weH orI WI” do [t e 2:23 BN

when she gets here, : . T

el e * . MyProfle Wichelle Capps <
L j' Ave you sermusly trymg o purush he r or saynt 155 WO ‘
§ when the only reason she said itis *"

b/c you viere pulling her- haw & trying t‘ Y

2drPM
- -};‘yelhng at he

L -.Ha[' : : S
L ‘Yau ware rm‘t przvy to the sntuatmn or tha CDnVEI‘Sa’EIOH or the
o ¢ircurnstances surraundmg that, Please send her over-here now.
- withthe trick. Send Emily over: here now, She is bemg pumshed SIS
this afternaion please take her phone away if'you do not: fio it when U ZAIPM
- shels'herd she wilt not be able to use it. = A |
Tamnot going tolet our children play us. We need to coparent
Take her phane away please ancl send ’chem here

PLAINTIFF'

: Fj’agr‘e_rl - § —.z.l;r A
e h“.f.z/,lr/[?dfw



- They r on the way 1 have her phone & she wa
N Vv/as all gomg .on yesterday & Ermly said the exact same 5

Fage 2

- B26

- MyPrnﬂla Macheile Capps _

248 PM
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- - ‘ 4614 OLEANDER DRIVE ,
O S -  MYRILEEBACH, SOUTH CAROLINA 29577

 THRBROTANTAWERMPA. @Y

 mowsscmTmW . . R © B13440856)
| MARY MADISUN BRT A o - . _ . EAX BE3-497-5124
WARY MADISON BRITTARY _ _ : : : . wwwhnttainlawfrocom

. APRESTONBRITIATY _ _ -
. TCASEBRITTANR. - : -
R September 19,2017 .

. FIRST CLASS MAIL,
. AniaFloyd -
. 1115 Third Avenne:
" Comway, SC 29526

" RE: ' Hal Capps vs Michelle Capps
S+ CaseNow2016-DR26931 -

Dear Anita,

- Ithascome.to my attention that the Capps children hiave niot et seen a counselor, Of May 17, 2017,1
_ provided your offics with a'list of thise cornselors that Dr. Bayne was suggestiiy for the girls. HasDr, .
‘Heidt submitfed his list.of possible counselors fo-your office? Is your client still seeing Hal Heidti Thave.
ontacted Sharor at Judge Holmes offics and shs stated that they have riot received names of poteatl
cotmselors us of Yet. Al yoil ara aware, the Order states thai.’%é'ftw&'fr;‘oilﬁ’s&!:pi‘t{;is'h_al}_‘rec‘dt_;jﬁmén_d??if-é" U
£ namies of counselors for the children to see; These nanies shall be submitted to The Honorable-Jan -
- Bromell-Holmes, who shall select the coumselor for the children from this ist”,. . . -

S My cliént_";;f‘eelisf_tf:a't'-.it‘.i's'wyyinipﬁm:maiim@gwd@:h'ava’ coimseling éspeciauy.'cons;;dgﬁﬁg;;hd{ S ey
© . instances that have occuired during the summer break from school. Itis my understanding that Dr. Bayne .
- has cafled Dr. Heidt od at multiple oooasions to discuss this matfer with ‘hirn and he has yet to retumher '
eallg, o o E R U R
-~ I you could please provide Dr. Heidt’s list of three potentisl names f 1 counselors 1o my office, 1will
- ¢ forward all'of the names to Judge Holmes for her qh@@ing_ﬁ,ﬁ?{,_'B;ayn_e—'rﬁcbmﬁicﬁﬂéd'-the.-ft')l_lq_\'i.t_ing__ e
oo pounselors: Bdward Conoor (843-268-0580; Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Marie Woodward, . -
- LPC(843-410-4943). I Dr. Heid Inagreement with Dr. Bayné's reéomimatidations, pleas advisgandl . -~ . .0
- will submit those names to Judge Holmes for her selection'so that the girls can begin comseling. . -

- With'repards to the brick column matter. My client hasaiways been agreeable to nsing Richi Kol aid
* 0 oswonld also/dgres to-use Antwine Matiliews or Chapman Construction provided that theworkbs
- - completed within a reasonable timeframe and that M. Capps pay atiorney’s fees-that Michelle has R
" incurred in deating with the brick oHumms, 17 M. Capps is not agreseble o thess torms, hen Ms. Copps.
- will pursue the matter in Magistites Court; A

Ms. .Capps will be available’on the following datés and times for the contractors to come to her homgand
. mieet regarding replacing the columns: September 25™ between 12:00 p.m. and 4:00.p.m., September 265
© between12:00 pan. and 3:00 p.m., September 281 between 12:00 p.m. and 2:00 p.m. and 5:00 posn. and
o 7:00.pam., October 204 between 1:00 p.m. and 3:00 p.m., October 3 between 1:00 p.m, and.3:00 p.;m. and
. October 3" between 5:00 ' p.m, and 7:00 p.m. If the above dates and-times do-not work with any ofthe:

838




suggestcd contractor’ 5 schedulas, they should contact lvﬁ' Capps dtrecﬂy and she will schedu!e ;] tsme tha’r
works fur aﬂ partles Please discuss this matter mﬂr your client and let me- Icnow his thought& '

: ;Thank you fur your time and attennon to thxs matter, 1look farward to heanng from you soon

‘Vary truly youxs,

o 'TBEBRI‘I‘I‘AINLAWFIRB{I,P.A.

B “‘Mm-y Madzson Bntum Langway

o ML

et

- ) }nc[osures A5 sfatad

Michelle: Capps (ﬁé e.mall)
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Hey sweetheart I'm thinking about you now and I hope school is
going good for you. I love you and I miss you

Haley Kathpn O

Tharstay, Moesmber 23, 203

Froday: Dacombar 91, 2017

3l

You look beautiful hope you're having fun tonight fove you.

Momday Deserbar 34

Hey hope you had a good day. You need to tefl me what you
would like for Christmas. My mind that Lwould like t& know as well

tzel

'
.
n
L
]
b -

Mama and dada and JILL/Thad would like to know as well 412N

£t
1’5
T

7] EXHIBIT

tafiils o

Page 34
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Per the court orderI‘m mot allowed to text you after 9 o} clock I,
love you '

T

Sumy Rrember T8I0

Cogan )

‘*s.z .

Hey SWEetheart what 5 up? Hope you re havmg a good day IWas
hopmg We cou!d see yeu : S

Page’8s -
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— 'Createdwﬁh !Expforerw# 1140 S

-C’hat_ with dad

o 5/2/201’7 45556 PM - 5/2/2017 9:04:44 PM

-

Export Detalls.
Davice Phone Number +1 (843) 222-2849

- -Devzce Name- hik
Devu:e Aing Eﬁf39905f33’986ea96065Bda'JBde?deBabbeG
Backup Date Saturday, December 23,2017 $:01 AM _ | 7 |
..'BBCkU g Dfrectory C\Uws\user\Appo\Roamsnngpple Computer\Mobl eSync\BackUp\efffaQQOSfSS9863a96(1669<ia73de7c53f3abb
Ces s ma o '

' Current Tlme Zcme (UTC*DS 00) Eastern Time {Us & Canada}

Pa mmpants:

- +1 343-251-9477 dad

the point whera lt 3 necegsaw fm me to have a car. ]-make
PR grodes, | bihave well i and out of schoal, I'ue been a good.
S claughte; Lhaize $2000 nght now that ahtribute to a car‘a
g Ican mak nmnthly paymant_« ta you if yout '

R oney 1 want 3 goiot refationship Wil you ‘anid Juist becaussi
S o't agree of believe eVery‘chmg you say doesn't mean [ don't T
. Jove you, Me gelting a car fias never been. riependesntv@n wh&the&-—-—l’ REEE
. or not we agree with eacl; other, it's heerr whether Thave goad . |
_ grades and a gond drwmg mcmrd wh'ach I dc:: Please cons;der thns.» ."

"'.1-’!

o ,‘{ou want to be an adul‘c ,you want to have adult conversatlons you
" do not talk- abatit things like this over a text and more | mpor’canﬂy r
~ you'do not disrespect someone with Whom you want something
. from. It's after § o'cdack and per the court order we are not .
“supposed to! communicate. It used to be 745 until T weat to court
ancl got that changed Goc)d nsghtl Iove you '

Pagel
842
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JOSEPH CAPPS - Cross Examination by Ms. Derrick 4

COURT: This is case number 2014-DR-26-1563, Michelle
Capps versus Joseph Harold Capps. Prior to resuming the
cross examination of the defendant, I did send the attorneys
an email. The parties initially requested two days. The
Court has been generous allowing the parties to introduce

witnesses and delve into testimony that is not pertinent to

‘the rule. I will not entertain that today because if I allow -

you, this could go on for three weeks but I'm not going to do
that. The issues are specific. They’'re stated in the
affidavit that was filed January 8, 2018. I'm cautioning the
attorneys, do not delve into matters that are not
specifically before the Court. I will place the defendant
back under oath. If you will raise your right hand, sir. Do
you swear or affirm the testimony that you will give here
today will be the truth?

MR, CAPP5: Yes, ma'am.

COURT: Ckay. Ms. Derrick, you may continue your cross
examination.

JOSEPH CAPPS, after being duly sworn,

testified as follows:

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MS. DERRICK:

Q. Just a few things. You said in your affidavit that the
children needed to know how to work for what they wanted, is
that right?

A. Um, on other things, vyes, ma'am.
190
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JOSEPE CAPPS - Cross Examination by Ms. Derrick 14

0 You didn’t see her after that?

A After, what date was this, ma’am?

Q. It was August, 2017.

A August 2017, again, I tried to make efforts. Again, I
saw E.H.C October, I've repeated this —-

0. I know, I've heard that. §So --—-

A. Getting back to the contacting my attorney, it takes
money for help with the visitation between the two attorneys,
it takes money out of my pocket and money out of Michelle’s
pocket which could go te the children or some other valid
cause versus getting the attorneys involved. I’ve had to
spend so much time and effort, just think of the money that

could go to the kids —-

¢. Oh, I know —~

A, —— it’s a lot —-

Q. I know —-

A. —-—- we're here because of Michelle —-

0. Well, no, we’re here because you brought a rule ---
A. —— because of Michelle’s actions.

Q. That’s what your testimony is —~-

A. That’'s my feeling, yes, ma'am.

Q. That’s your feeling but what I'm saying is you don’t even
communicate with her?

A. I disagree.

0. ©Okay. Now, if you will tell us what your gross monthly
200
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JOSEPH CAPPS - Cross Examination by Ms. Derrick 15

income was for this past year?
A. It's —-

MS. LEE: Your Honor, I am golng to object to that, T
don’t see where that is relevant tc the issues before the
Court. His income does not matter.

COURT: What’s the relevance of his gross monthly income?

MS. DERRICK: I’ve made this argument two times. First
of all, when she said I couldn’t have the tax returns, and T
understand that, and I thought that we had the first that he
could pay his own attorney fees, he could pay his own
attorney fees, this isn’t relevant and when the Court ruled
the other day, what the Court said was that T could cross
examine him on it and I said fine and on his ability to pay
his own attorney fees.

MS., LEE: Your Honor, he has already acknowledged he has
the ability to pay his own attorney fees. That is one of the
factors that the Court looks at. I have said, and every time
this has been brought up, I have said that my client has the
ability to pay his own fees but that is not the turnstile as
to whether or not he is entitled to a reimbursement of his
fees in this instance.

MS. DERRICK: Well, attorney fees, and my understanding
from the beginning, he wasn’t going to request attorney fees.
He has requested that she pay his attorney fees. I think

that his ability to pay his own attorney fees and what he
201
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JOSEPH CAPPS ~ Cross Examination by Ms. Derrick 16

makes is relevant in determining whether or not the Court
orders that my client has to pay his attorney fees.

CCURT: Okay. The objection is overruled. You can
answer the question.

BY ME. DERRICK:

A. Gross monthly incoms —-

MS. LEE: Um, Your Honor, at —-- may I take a two or
three minute break? We may in fact withdraw our request for
fees_if it’s going to be contingent upon Doctor Capps having
to release this information and in fact, vou know, part of

the issues here are because there has been s¢ much

complaining on the part of the plaintiff. He only gives you

—- we only get x percent of his income. We only do this, and
all of this has been communicated to the children and —-

MS. DERRICK: I'm —-

MS. LEE: —- I’m going to object to her seeing his
income, but if —- and that’'s one of the reasons that I have
been objecting to having to release this because I do not
think that a rule to show cause is proper. However, I do
understand your ruling and if so I would like to have just a
moment to confer with my client to see whether or not he will
withdraw his request fcor fees 1if it 1s contingent upon
releasing this information.

COURT: It appears based on what I’'ve heard in Jjust for

me presiding over the other rule in which the parties
202
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JOSEPH CAPPS - Cross Examination by Ms. Derrick 17

resolved prior to the Court actually making a ruling, that a
lot of issues and a lot of what happens does not need to be
discussed with the children just based on the exhibits that
came in. The children are, they are just as much involved in
the decision making process and I think that’s clear. BSo, I
will give you an opportunity to take a break and then I am
going to certainly consider the finances because it was-
already stipulated that and it’s clear. The income that the
mother makes, that the mother has, is what the father gives
to her. Sb wefll take a ten minute break, a five minute
break.

MS. LEE: Thank you, Your Honor, and may I confer with
my client on this, he is on the stand but it will be that
limited issue?

COURT: That’s fine.

MS. ILEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

( Court takes a five minute recess.)

MS. LEE: Your Honor, I have discussed this with my
client and was wondering if you could first make the
determination of contempt and if indeed Ms. Capps is found
in contempt of court, my client can then decide whether or
not he is going to waive the fees and that way if, that way
he is not being prejudiced until that determination is made.
50 ——

COURT : Well, I can’t make that determination until
203
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JOSEPH CAFPPS ~ Redirect Examination by Ms. Lee 18

after all parties have -~=—-—

MS. LEE: That’'s correct —

COURT: ——— presented their testimony.

MS. LEF: So it will be when we come back but there will
be ample time, at that point in time, to do that.

COURT: Ckay. 50 we will entertain the ~- we will handle
the attorney fees at a separate hearing where the income of
both parties will be relevant.

MS. LEE: Okay, thank you, Your Honor.

COURT: So that will be delayed at this time. Ms.
Derrick, prcceed with your next question.

MS. DERRICK: I'm dcne, Your Heonor, That’s all the
guestions I have.

COURT: Okay. Redifect?

MS. LEE: fes, ma’am, very briefly.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. LEE:

Q. Doctor Capps, Ms. Derrick showed you a text known as
Defendant’s exhibit number seven, and this is a text between
you and your daughter on about May 2, 2017, is that correct?
A. Yes, ma’am.

0. Alright, and I'm going to ask you what had transpired
between you and your daughter in the days leading up to this?
A. The days leading up to this, H.K.C was going to a prom.
I was out of town. I arranged for my parents to pick them

up in the morning and take them to school and had
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JOSEPH CAPPS - Redirect Examinaticn by Ms. Lee 30

order in March of 2017 until when you filed this rule.
That’s how I started my gquestions with him and talked to him
about last year. I didn’t ask him what he’s deing this year
as far as communicating with Michelle and I asked him
specifically about, didn’t you cut down everything after July
of last year. I didn’t ask him about 2018 ---

COURT: I understand. No, not on today you didn't. I
gave both of you marching orders from here on out but on
Tuesday you did delve into 2018, but I really don’t need to
hear that. I know exactly what’s been going on.

M8. DERRICK: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MS., LEE:

0. Now, there was —- Ms. Derrick also asked you if after
H.K.C's wreck, you have made any effort to communicate
with her. Did you make any effort to communicate with
Michelle or H.K.C after her wreck?

A. T found out five hours after my daughter was in an
accident. I was notified that she had been in an accident
aﬁd right after I found that cut I called my daughter.

Q. Now, let me ask you something. You found out five hours
after the wreck; what time did the wreck happen?

A. Fourish, 4:30 in the afternoon.

0. And when did Michelle notify you of this?

A. That evening.

Q. And did you happen to come upen the wreck?

216
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From: Gregory Forman <atterney@gregoryforman.com>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:27:03 AM

To: Lewis, Robin

Cc: Michelle Capps; jdl @jdilaw.com

Subject: RE: Capps vs Capps Transcript

=+ EYTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside the organization.
Please exercise caution before clicking any links or opening attachments.

LR

Dear Ms. Lewis,

My ciient and her triat attorney believe there are portions of the
December 14th hearing that are not in this transcript. What is the
procedure for obtaining a copy of the audio recording you made”?

Gregory S. Forman, PG

171 Church Street, Suite 160
Chartaston, SC 29401

(843) 720-3749

(843) 614-5086 (fax)



----Qriginal Message-----

From: Lewis, Robin <RLewis@sccourts.org>

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:29 AM

To: Gregory Forman <attorney@gregoryforman.com>

Cc: Michelle Capps <mdaviscapps @gmail.com>; jdi@jdllaw.com
Subject: Re: Capps vs Capps Transcript

The procedure is to list where the omitted portions are believed to be
and 1 will review it again.



From: Gregory Forman <attorney@gregoryforman.com>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:31:12 AM

To: Lewis, Robin

Cc: Michelle Capps, jdi@jdllaw.com

Subject: RE: Capps vs Capps Transcript

«» EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside the organization.
Please exercise caution before clicking any links or opening attachments.

REK

Per my client, " On page 45 prior to taking a break & while she was
stilt on the record Judge Holmes asked where our daughters were -
Julaan responded that they were in school and Judge Holmes ordered
that they be brought to the court house. This was all on the record.
Furthermore, she made some sort of statement that she had enough &
that no parent should ever be frightened of their child! "

Gregory S. Forman, PC

171 Church Street, Suite 160
Charleston, SC 29401

(843) 720-3749

(843) 614-5086 (fax)



From: Lewis, Robin

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:38:32 AM
To: Gregory Forman

Ce: Michelle Capps; jdI@jdllaw.com
Subject: Re: Capps vs Capps Transcript

Will review and get back with you. Does she think that all of this
was said on page 457



----- Original Message-----

From: Lewis, Robin <RLewis@sccourts.org>

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 12:36 PM

To: Gregory Forman <afiorney @gregoryforman.com:

Cc: Michelle Capps <mdaviscapps @gmail.com>, jdl@ijdllaw.com
Subject: Re: Capps vs Capps Transcript

Mr. Capps,
| have reviewed the record for page 45 and beginning of 46. The

record indicates that the Court took a recess at that time. There is
no mention of this on the record.



From: Gregory Forman <attorney@gregoryforman.com:
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 2:39:17 PM

To: Lewis, Robin

Cc: Micheile Capps; jdl@jdllaw.com

Subject: RE: Capps vs Capps Transcript

= EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside the organization
Please exercise caution before clicking any links or opening attachments.

* ko

Dear Ms. Lewis,

My client still believes that this discussion was on the record. How
do we go about getting a copy of the audiorecording? My client is
willing to pay for it.

Gregory S. Forman, PC

171 Church Street, Suite 160
Charteston, SC 28401

(843) 720-3749

{843) 614-5086 {fax)



----- Original Message-----

From: Lewis, Robin <RLewis@sccourts.org>

Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 5:14 PM

To: Gregory Forman <attorney@gregoryforman.com>

Cc: Michelle Capps <mdaviscapps@gmail.com>; jdl@jdllaw.com
Subiect: Re: Capps vs Capps Transcript

Mr. Forman,
Court Reporters are not allowed to release the audio recordings.

Further review may be permitted by the presiding judge upon written
request with good cause shown.

Thanks,

Robin Lewis
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JOSEPH CAPPS ~ Redirect Examination by Ms. Les 44

counseling?
A, June, six mconths after that,
0. Okay, and have things improved consistently since then?
A. Yes, ma‘am, with the help of counseling,
Q. Alright. Now, Ms. Derrick asked you about giving
Christmas presents to the children from last year. You were
asking them what they wanted. Why didn’t they get their
Christmas presents or why haven’t they gotten their Christmas
presents yat?
A, They didn’t get their Christmas presents at Christmas
because tﬁey didn’t want to be around me despite my attempts
to contact them.
Q. But you have been around them since haven’t you?
A, Yes, ma’am.
Q. Okay, and what circumstances, circumstances by which you
could get them their Christmas presents?
A, It weculdn’t have been appropriate in my opinion at a
Mexican restaurant in front of other people. I wanted it to
be more personal and more memorable.
Q. Okay, and since the events of July 19, 2017, how many
times have your children been to your house?
A. Uh, without —- with my knowledge, a few times.
Q. Okay.

MS. LEE: That’s all I have, thank you, Your Honor.

COURT: Alright. Sir, you may return to your seat. I am
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not going to excuse the parties. I need the courtroom
cleared. I'm done with testimony but the parties are not
excused. I will be bringing the parties back in. I'm going
£o give the parties specific instructions as to what I expect
to occur for visitation from here on cut moving forward. I
am also going to talk with the juvenile prosecutor as well as
the Department of Juvenile Justice. They are on my docket
today and I will call the parties back in when I need them to
come back in. I need the attorneys for the parties alsoc in
chambers at this time. Let Ms. Fox know that I need to see
her along with the Department of Juvenile Justice in
chambears.

(Court takes a recess.)

(Back on the record.)

COURT: In case number 2014-DR-26-1563, Michelle Davis
Capps versus Jcoseph Harold Capps. The Court is concerned,
and I note that the two minor children of the parties are
present in court pursuant to my instructions, because I want
the children to hear the instructions coming before the Court
as I explain it and I don’t want any misinterpretation. It
is clear to the Court, and this rule continues to pend{ the
Court has not made a decision but it is clear to the Court,
clear to the Court, that the children have been empowered to
make decisions as to whether theyf're going to visit the

father or not. That will no longer happen as of tocday. When
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46

it. is the father’s weekend, the children are to be ready and
visitation is to occur. There will be no more are you going

to visit. That has been the problem in this case. Children

need tc stay in children’s places. Children do nct make
acdult decisions. Children are to comply with the rules of
mother’s home and father’s home. If children fail to do

that, I do note that the young ladies were able to witness

what happens to juveniles that do not comply with the rules,

and that wasn’t staged because they were here. It Jjust so
happened that this judge had Jjuveniles scheduled on it’s

docket today. It is real. Juveniles don’t get to pick and
choose whether they follow the parents rules or whether they
visit a parent. Children don’t get to demand what parents
will do for them. Children follow the rules. If one can
follow the rules in Mom’s home, the Court expects the rules
to be followed in Dad’s home. If a child can follow the
rules of the employer, the Court expects the child or
children te fcollow the rules of both parents. The children‘
follew the school rules and are able to make A's and be on
the hcnor roll, then the Court knows that the children are
capable of following everyone’s rules, not rules that they
choose te follow. Children are to be respectful. Now, I've
heard that church was wvery important to this family and I'm
sure as in every church, everyone should know the 10

commandments. Honor thy Father and Mother that thy days may
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be long upon the land. Now, it may be stated differently but
that is one of the 10 commandments. We're also taught at a
young age to do unto others as we would have them do unto
you. We are taught about responsibility. We’re taught about
being respectful and children should be taught to respect
both parents regardless of whether those parents are still
married or not. The reality is that their parents are not
married. The counseling shall continue to occour. The
children do nct have a choice in the matter. This is a court
order and it’s really repugnant to the Court that it has not
been followed. Manipulation has occurred, and it 1s clear to
the Court that it has occurred. Based on what has been
presented, this matter should have came back befcre the Court
long before this week. Recording conversations in one
person’s home is illegal and it’s not acceptable. Being
disrespectful to either parent will not be tolerated.
Refusing to follow the rules will not be tolerated. If a
child thinks that by being told that they no longer have the
decision to, rather to visit or not, and goes to the father’s
home, refuses to follow the fatherfs rules and law
enforcement has to be called, that will not be tolerated. I
asked the juvenile solicitor to remain in the courtroom so
that she can explain, but I think the children have witnessed
what happens to the children that don't follow the rules.

Just so that it is clear, the Court doces not favor parental
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alienation. The Court does not favor a parent being
disparaged by another parent in the presence of the children
or allow any third parties to do so because regardless of
what happened with the adults, a child has one mother and one
father. A child shall respect both parents. Children shall
be allecwed to love both parents, spend time with beth parents
and both parent’s families. There can never be to much love
expended to children. Never be. I have reviewed what is
pertinent with respect to the wvisitation, and I’'m not sure
but it is clear to me, that the every other weekend that’s in
this order has not been complied with. There have been
vacations schedulied during the father’s time. Who's to
blame, the Court will decide that after I hear everything but
because we have to break because there was not encugh time to
hear all of this, I'm going to tell the parties what I expect
to happen while this case continues to pend until it can come
back before the Court. Weekend visit will resume, and I
don’t know who's weekend it’s suppose to be, but what I do
know 1is that the Court has no concern akout whether the
mother or the father love their children. I have no concern,
no concern. I have no concern about the father doing
anything to cause any harm to the children while_they are in
his custedy. 30, the weekend visit will start on today.
With respect to Christmas visits, that is specified in the

court order and it says, “that the mother will have the
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children after school on the last day of school until
December 23" at 6:00 pm, The father will have the children
December 23* at 6:00 pm until after church service in which
they are involved on the 24™.” Now, this is an old order but
until it has been changed, the parties will coccperate with it
or you will be subjected to the contempt powers of the court
based on your willful viclation, which subjects cne to jail
time, a fine, community service, payment of attorney’s fees.
The order goes on to say, “that Christmas eve from after
church service until 5:00 pm on Christmas day the children
shall be with the mother. The children shall be with the
father 5:00 pm Christmas day until January 1% at 6:00 pm.”
Children deserve to have egual time with both parents. There
are to be no activities scheduled on the father’s time. The’
father does not have to call and ask the mother are the
children coming. He doesn’t have to call the children and
ask are they coming. The Court has already said what the
visitation shall be. Its in the order. There are
restraining orders that prohibits all parties, the parents,
from hurting, harming, harassing, molesting, abusing or
bothering the other in any manner. And it geoes on tc state
other things the parties are restrained from doing. Most
importantly, as it pertains to the children, they were
prechibited from being restrained and enjoined from discussing

this litigation with the children or in the presence of the
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children or allow the children to be in the presence of any
third person who is discussing the circumstances surrounding
the separation, the terms of any agreement of the parties.
If that has occurred, and it is clear from the documents I
reviewed, it has. That was not to occur because this is an
lssue between the parents. The only thing that should of
happened was the children continuing to spend time with beoth
parents and leaving the adult matters to the adults. The
parties were prohibited, forbidden, restrained, and enjoined
from degrading or denigrating the other or in the -- the
other twe or in the presence of the children nor shall either
allow any third person to do so. Degrade or denigrate the
cther in the presence of the chiidren, but it is clear to the
Court that this has occurred.

Ms. Fox, since I've taken up some of yvour lunchtime and
mine as well, if you would please, and this is -- I have
never had a case that T ever had to ask the sclicitor to come
in and be present. I have never had such a case. Never had
facts so clear of disrespect to a parent, disrespect. We
have parents who refuse to take care, to pay one brown penny
to support their children, but we have very few parents who
fight to see their children. Ms. Fox, if you would please,
T will give you an opportunity at this time to explain your
Job as a Juvenile Sclicitor.

M3. FOX: Your Honor, for the Court’s information, my
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name is Caroline Fox, I am a senior attcorney for Juvenile
Court. We handle all ¢riminal matters and status offenses.
If we have cases of a child being a runaway which would
include leaving the home where they are suppose to be without
permission -—- we just had a child here who was in the custody
of the Waccamaw Youth Center who ran away from that location,
returned back that night but we still charged with runaway,
came to court and I believe, Your Honor, sent him to the
evaluation center in Charleston and detained him for a period
not to exceed 45 days for one count of runaway. There is
also a charge called uncontrollable and incorrigible, where
the child is beyond the control of a parent and it would be
whatever parent that child islwith at the time that the
incorrigibility is occurring. That is an offense as well.
Then there 1s a status offense but it does carry up to 90
days and can involve a detained evaluaticn for being in
viclation of that law. We alsé have situations occur where
there would be, for example, malicious damage in whatever
home . If the child breaks scmething that they say, well,
this my TV, if the TV is not in their name, if the house is
not in their name and they punch a whele in the wall, that is
malicious damage to the property, real property or personal
property[ That 1s also something that can be charged. If
for example, a parent takes something away from a child, and

the child reacts to that either aggressively or violently
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that is a charge as well, either i1f the child assaults the
parent or the child has malicious damage. Those are criminal
charges and the child faces up to an indeterminate commitment
not to exceed their 21°* birthday according to whatever the
parol guidelines will be. We handle cases every Tuesday,
every Friday. If we get a case by the police department we
have the option of putting the child in their diversion
program or bringing them to court and that is in the state’s
discretion.

COURT: Thank you. Just so the parties understand the
gravity of what’s happening here, there is no reason as I
stated, based on what I’ve heard with the employment at a law
firm of whiﬁh the lawyer gave great reviews, that a child
would not be respectful to the father, but that hasn’t
occurred here. So that’s why I went to these great measures
because I realize that a child may present themselves one way
in a situation at work or at school, out socially with
others, but be completely disrespectful at home. These are
matters that must be dealt with, and as I stated I expect the
parties to follow the court ocorder as it specifies the
visitation. I expect the counseling to cccur, and I would
say the worst thing that could happen, but if there continues
to be disrupticns in the visitation schedule by the parties
nct following the wvisitation schedule, as I stated, nothing

should be scheduled on the father’s time. That 1is the{
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father’s time. He is to plan the activities. If the
children would like to do something else, they need to
consult with the father. The father shouldn’t feel like
you'’ re being the victim. As I stated, I am alsc the parent
of a senior, a 17 year old, whe’s also locking at college,
who alsc wants a car. Those are decisions that the parents
make. Those aren’t decisicns that children demand. I'm not
sure when this will —- when we will be able to complete the
testimony but as I stated, I expect the order to be complied
with. I expect the counseling to continue. I believe it’s
in the children’s best interest to have continued counseling
with the father to further avoid any parental alienation as
has already been determined by a prior corder. There should
not be any negative remarks made about either parent in the
presence of the children. The children should not be
engaging in conversation with a parent concerning any bad
acts or alleged bad acts with another parent. That 1is
completely inappropriate. Third persons are allowed toc be
present with the children. The father has remarried. No cne
has presented any information to me as tc why the stepmcther
would be a danger to the children or either of his parents.
So whoever the father chooses to, if there is problems with
the pick up ahd delivery time, whatever third person he
designates, that is the person he designates. There will not

be any further manipulation in this matter. Life is not
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about setting your own rules. We all have guidelines we must
comply with. BAlright, I don’t have anything else I need to
state with respect to while this matter continues to pend,
other than I expect the order to be complied with. There
does not need to be a phone call about whether wvisitation
will happen. It is to occur as it is specified in the order.
Ms. Derrick, any questions?

MS. DERRICK: Nc, ma’am, are we Jjust going to do some
kind of interim order then? Is Ms. Floyd going to do that
or —— do yocu want a written order as to what you stated
today?

COURT: You know, all that I stated is already in this
order —-—

MS5. DERRICK: I know —-—

COURT: —- I wanted them to hear it because I'm not
going toc tolerate it. I wanted the children to be present
because I am not going to tolerate it.

MS. DERRICK: Alright.

MS. LEE: I understand.

COURT: 1 am not going tc tolerate it. Disrespect of
children by the parents will not be tolerated by the Court,
will not be. And Mr. Capps, you don’t have to feel bad
about having to bring the matter court. Mrs. Capps
shouldn’t feel bad about bringing the matter to court. If

the order is not being complied with, that’s why you come
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back to court. If adults can’t act like adults and the
children can’t stay in their places, then the CourtEwill deal
with you. Alright. |

MS. LEE: Thank you, Your Honor. _ ”g}

+

(Conclusion of hearing held on December 14, 2018.)
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THE COURT: It's one sheet.

MRS. LER: Would you like a copy?

MS. DERRICK: I don’t know what went in.
{LAWYERS CONFER})

BY MS. DERRICK:

Q: Did you receive this email about summer visitation?

A T did.

Q: Okay.

Az Um, this was the second one I believe that I received.
Q: Okay. Had you received one before that?

A I did. Um, it had included a date in June.

Q: Oh, it included a date in June?

A: Right, and then this one says disregard the date in June.
Q: Okay.

Az T believe that's when he went on his trip.

Q: Okay. All right. All right, was he supposed to get them in
June at some point in time?

A: He, according to our agreement, he is to have them for one
week, um, June, July and August.

Q: Okay.

A: And they are his to choose and he's just to let me know
prior to March first so that plans can be made accordingly.

Q: Okay. Now, did you communicate with him about the summer
visitation?

A: I did.
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Q: Okay. And did you send him an email?
B I did.
Q: Um, this is the email that I sent him. I believe they
initially thought I didn't respond until May, but this was
actually dated March sixth.
Q: Okay. And what did you tell him about his dates?
At I told him that the dates in July are fine, but I do want
to make you aware that Haley Kathryn will be leaving for
Montreat July 23rd. So, if you're planning on going anywhere she
would probably need to be back by the 21st or 22nd. Um,
unfortunately the dates that you have requeéted in August are
overlapping with plans that I have already with the girls. I'm
hoping that we can both adjust to make it work cut so that we
both can have some time with them before school starts. Let me
know if you have any flexibility with vour dates.
Q: Okay. We'd wmark this as our number -~-—

MRS. LEE: This will be 15. No ---

THE CQURT: Yeah, it will bhe 15.

MS. DERRICK: It's 152

THE COURT: Uh-huh {(affirmative response}.

MS. DERRICK: Okay.

THE COURT: The cne she wanted to introduce hasn't been
marked; is that correct?

COURT REPORTER: That's correct.

MS. DERRICK: Right. I don't think we marked that, Judge.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 15

ADMITTED INTC EVIDENCE

BY MS. DERRICK:

Q: So your response to him was by March the sixth?

Az Yes, ma'am.

Q: Okay.

A Not May, it was March.

Q: Okay. Did y'all have any conversations about -- about the
summer ?

A Um, I don't believe we discussed it any further until May.
Qs Okay, what happened in May?

A: He sent me an email to which I responded. Um, I believe at
that point in time he asked me where I was going in August s0
that he did not duplicate the same type of situation with his
time with the girls.

Q3 Okay. And did you tell him where you were going?

A: I did. Um, initiaily I had hoped to meet some, um, family
that I have that we don't get to see very often, they liye in

Ohio, and we were going to meet in Ashville. Um, we had

recennected the summer before. My cousin has a -—--

MS.

MRS. LEE: Objection, Your Honor.

DERRICK:

Q:

You don't have to tell me all that. 80 —— =sc¢ what ——--
THE COURT: Okay. Your objection is sustained.

MRS. LEE: Thank you, Your Honor,
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BY MS5. DERRICK:

Q: Okay. And what did y'all discuss about the summer?

A: Um, well, in May he asked me when -~ where I was going. T
emailed him back and let him know. Um, however, I started
getting very uncomfortable. Um, the first Rule te Show Cause, 1
hagd had -- I had allowed myself to be in certain proximity and
in certain things with Hal that were spun and turned in ways
that discredited me that were not accurate. And after that, I
was very, very careful to remove myself from any possibility of
anything that could possibly be spun or turned or anything. Um,

it just, it wasn't worth it. I ~- it just wasn't worth it. So,

1um, he was dropping, I believe, the girls off one day or one of

the girls, I don't even remember which, I was walking the dog,
and I verbally told him, I'm not going to take that time in
Rugust. You -- you do whatever, you know, you have 1t. You do
whatever you want, go wherever you want, I'm out. I was not
going to let myself have any culpability in any way whatsoever.
and I, at that point, after March, when I never heard back from
nim, I just was never comfortable. Because it was never, okay,
you can -- there never was a direct response of, okay, you can
have this time. Okay, I'm comfortable with this. T'm not
comfortable with this and I just wanted out.

Q: Okay. Okay. So, but you had a conversation with him?

A: I did.

Q: pid you go anywhere in August?
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A: Bbsolutely not.

Q: Okay.

A: That's very evident by my daughter being in a car wreck and
my other daughter having her wisdom teeth out during the exact
same time had been referenced.

Q: Ckay.

B: I didn't go anywhere.

Q: Okay. You didn't go anywhere?

i No, ma’am, I was not going near that.

Q: Now, did he - did he come back with any dates that he

wanted in August?

A Ne, ma'am,
Q: All right. Did he exercise the weeks -~ the week he wanted
in July?

A: Absclutely not.

Q: Ckay. Was there confusion on some mission trips or
something?
Az Thera —- what I think happened, our church has geveral

types of events that go on. We have retreats that are normally
in the fall and in the spring. Um, in the summertime we have a
mission trip, and then that could go in various locations, and
that's going to be different from the middle school to high
school, and then there's Montreat where is an exact location in
the mountains.

Q: And did you explain that to him that you had to clarify
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some of the mission trips?
A: Yes, because I felt from -- he was getting confused and I
felt thnat he was intermixing the mission trip with Montreat.
And so I wanted just to make him, you know, help him make him
aware.
Q: Okay. Pid he, and I'm just asking, be never toock any of his
weeks during the summer of '177?
A:  He was not —-- -he was not having any visitation, any
overnights, um, any weekends, any weeklong visitaticon with the
children period. He chose to stop picking them up end of April,
first of May. Um, I know the children made requests.
Q: Okay. All right. Um, did he ever send you a letter or text
or email saying the he was upset about this or that he wanted
these weeks made up?
ns He never once ever. And I get —— I‘ve received letters for
a lot of things. And I, throughout this whole time, I never
received a letter from Ms. Floyd. I never was made informed of a
phone call by Ms. Floyd. I never received an email, a text, a
conversation or anything from Hal expressing any frustration to
me on visitation with the children. And I think one of the
greatest things here is that my children did not tell him, I
don't want to come with you this weekend. He didn't pull in the
driveway.

MRS. LEE: Your Honor -- objection, Your Honor: Irrelevant,

no foundation, hearsay.
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THE COURT: And I'm going to strike that in terms of the
Plaintiff saying what the children told their father.
MS. DERRICK: Okay.

BY MS. DERRICK:

Q: Did he show up to pick them up?

A No, never. I will say, he -- what he started doing to spend
time with them was to take them to dinner, you know, and, you
know, maybe an activity or something like that. But it was not
the every other weekend, the one week, you know, during the
summer. It was not the set visitation. And I want to say, one, I
try so hard never to make things more difficult, never to make
things harder. I did not berate Hal for not coming to get the
girls. I didn‘t make one comment to him about not coming to get
the girls. I did not contact an attorney to make things up. I
was still reeling from what had happened before. I was still
spending all of my money that I could in trying to get -- secure
a counselor. I was not trying to do anything to make anything
more difficult for anybody. And I was just glad when the girls
went out with their dad and had a nice dinner and came home
happy. And that was, you kncw, I thought okay, if that's what
he's wanting this to be, just have a nice time, stay connected.
You know, I can't make him.

Q: Okay. All right. And did you get any -- any -- and you got
no information or any kind of regquest for anything, any makeup

time with the kids?
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A Never requests for any makeup time; never a request or
notice sven that my children were threatening or scaring him or
frightening him in any way. No one notified me of any
cccurrences of any of that.

o: Okay. All right.

A: As far as I was concerned this was his choosing. He was —-
this is how he wanted to do it and this was what he was
dictating. And I was made not aware of anything else until
Januaxy of 2018.

Q: Okay. What was that? Can I see my last exhibit? I'm sorry,
Judge. All right, did you -- did you notify him into the summer
about taking a trip with the girls?

A Ch, I did. I did.

Q: All right.

fi%4 Um, we had a situation that came up and, um, we —— wWe - I
wanted to take advantage of it and, um, I was trying to figure
out how, you know, we could shimmy the days around. And even
though, at this point in time, he had not been utilizing or
picking up the girls on his weekends or anything, um, except For
dinners, um, I still wanted to be respectful and not assume that
anything going forward would not shift back to the way it was
ordered. And, um, again, Your Honor, I just -- I was not after
this, that first Rule, I was not going to allow myself any —— as
much as possible, I have tried to cover myself with anything,

whereas before, it never entered my mind.
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Q: Did you =-- did you offer, because you wanted to go
somewhere with them, was that supposed to be his weekend?

A: Yes, um, his weekend was scheduled to be July seventh
through the ninth and, um, I sent him an email and stated, “the
girls and I are trying to plan a trip out of town, and due to
adhering to your requested week with the girls and other
commitments that they have the only time we can make it work is
to go over your weekend of July seventh-through the ninth.
Please let me know if this is a problem. I am happy to switch a
weekend with you or give you some days or nights during the week
if that is better for you.” Because I did think at the time,
well, maybe weekends weren't good, maybe he had plans, and he's,
for the most part, at home during the week, and I'm happy, you
know, whatever days he chose for him that would work I was
willing to.

Q: Did he respond to this?

A: No, ma'am, not at all.

Q: Did y'all go that weekend?

A: We did.

Qs all right. Did, after the weekend, did you hear anything
from him, like T can't believe you took them cn my weekend?

A No, ma'am.

Q: No texts?

A Nothing.

Q: No emails?
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A: Not that I recall.
0 No letters?
A: Not that I recall, nc, ma'am.
MRS. LEE: No ohjection.
THE COURT: Plaintiff's 16 is admitted.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 16

ADMITTED INTQO EVIDENCE

BY MS. DERRICK: - - - ~

Q: Now, how did the rest of that summer go?

Az Um, let's see, um, he did not, um, have any overnight
visitation with the girls. He did continue to, you know, I think
he at one time tock one girl to the mall or, you know, dropped
them off at a movie, um, took them to dinner a lot. Um, there
was —~— the time before he took the trip in June I know that he
had asked the girls to go to dinner prior before he left, and
they did go with him. Um, and during that dinner he did not
share any plans that he had, you know, for his upcoming trip.
And by that, I mean, it was an opportunity that he could have
spoken to the girls that he was getting ready to get engaged and
he did not, you know, give them a heads up or make them aware.

Qs Were you =-- that's that dinner in July?

A: That was actually in June ---
Q: Ckay.
L: ~--- that they —- that they went prior toc them going on

their wvacatlon.
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addition to being provided with the name of the counselor, um,

you were also responding to Doctor Capps’ summer visitation, and

lwhat did you tell him about his week of summer visitation,

August one through eight?
L: Um, hold on one second. Let's see. Specifically, just that
sentence or, let’s see, I'm trying to see where it says ~— I'm

sorry, can yocu show me where it says just specifically for the

| August one? Oh, thank you. Okay, right here. I was looking up

here, I apologize, with the other part of it. She had asked me
earlier in his email thread, he asked me where I was going with
the girls during the week of August and he wanted to know so
that when he made plans with the girls that he did not duplicate
and go to the same place. And I said, the girls and I are going
to the mountains with my family.
Q: Okay. Now, and this is the second time that you had teld
him he could not have August one through eight, isn't 1it?
A: No, ma‘am, it's not. Um, I don't see that as me telling him
he can't have it and then ---

MS. DERRICK: Held, hold. Let me see.
Az The March sizxth email I —--—

THE COURT: Ma'am, there is an objection. And when there's
an objection you no longer speak.

BY MRS. LEE:

Q: Now, I'm going to point out Defendant's Number Eight, and

when's that dated?
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A: Um, that is dated February 28th.

Q: Okay. So that's within the time that he has to notify you
of nis visitation?

Az Absolutely. Absolutely.

Q: And what does he say?

‘A: T would like to take the girls this swmmer from August

first to August seventh and from July 18th to July Z2Z4th.
Disregard the previous date in June. )
Q: Okay. Now, and your response was, no, we're going somewhere
the first week in August.

Az No, my response was the week in July was great. I gave him
a heads up on a church trip that Haley Kathryn was going to be
going on so that if he needed to make accommodations.

Q: Yes, ma'am, I'm talking about the August one through August
seven.

A: I - T -~ what I did then is I said I had made some plans at
that time and I asked if he had any flexibility with the dates
so that we could possibly both, you know, use that time and
spend time with the kids. I'd wiggle my dates one way, he would
wiggle them, and I got no response.

Q: And then on June —— and then thereafter on June 23 you sent
him something and took ~- and told him that you and the girls
were planning something for another weekend of his, weren't you?
a: Um, ves, we admitted this earlier and I asked him if this

was a problem for him. I asked his permission to take this time
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and i offered him an opportunity to switch the weekend or to
switch days of the week to which I got no response.

Q: All right. Isn't i1t true that you plan things with the
children and then you expect Doctor Capps to either work around
it or deal with the children?

A: I'm sorry. I'm not understanding that.

Q: Okay.

A:. What do you mean deal with the children?

Qs Well, when did you make plans for the weekend of July seven
through nine?

A: Um, to be honest, I'm not remembering even where we ended
up going. I think we were offered a friend’s condo in -- it was
a timeshare condo and it just came up. And they contacted us and
said it's not rented. Would you like to take this time and use
our condo in Wild Dunes? And I went, wow, that would -- that
would be lovely, but let me see if I can work this out and
that's when I emailed him and said the only way I can make that

work is with your time and can I give you ancther weekend or can

I give you days during the week.

Q: And the children were aware of this, weren't they?
A: Um, I don't think at the time that I sent that they were,
no, ma'am.

MRS. LEE: Okay. Now, one second, Your Henor. Your Honor, we
did not keep a copy of Defendant's Number Nine. May I?

THE COURT: Sure.
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to Show Cause, the resulting Order from the pricr Rule to Show
Cause required that the children be in counseling and also
required you to be in counseling; is that correct?

A: My understanding was that Hal and I both were to be in
counseling and that both of our counselors were to be in
communication with each other and that both of cur counselors
were to give three names, um, each. They were to be turned in to
Judge Holmes and Judge Holmes was going to make the decision on
the counselor for the children.

Q: And I'm going to show you Defendant's Exhibit Number Six --

A Yes, ma'am.
Q: ~—— and I'm going to ask you if you recognize this?
A Yes, ma'am, I do.

Q: Okay. And that is a screen shot that was sent tc you by Hal
Capps; is that correct?

A: Um, actually, it's not. Um, it's been altered. The one that
he gave me came with a text and I think we admitted it earlier.
The text went with it was that Hal -- these names here were for
-~ Hal was trying to give recommendations from Doctor Heidt for
who I should be seeing. These were not recommendations on the
girls. Um, in fact, Robert McCarthy does not even treat
children. Um, Melissa Todd does, but no, these were ——-

Q: My question was if you reccgnized that and were you sent a

screen shot of that?
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A: The writing was not on it and it accompanied a text that
told me that they were to be for me.

Q: Okay. All right, and when did you respond to Hal?

A Um, I believe -~ I -~ I - well, I'm so sorry, respond to him

regarding what? I should ~—-

Q: Regarding cougseling.

A: Um, -——-

Q: You knew you were under an Order to be in counseling,
correct?

Az Yes, ma'am. Oh, yes, ma'am., Yes, ma'am.

Q: Okay. And when did you respond to him?

Az I know that it was in an email and I know that I at one
time, I believe, I don't recall the date coff the top of my head,
but I do recall that I had made my attorney, um, aware that I
started counseling in April. I have had some difficulty finding
a counselor who would take a court case and that was also a Blue
Cross Blue Shield provider, I did find Helen and then, of
course, I got her first available. Um, I notified Mary Madison.
It was my assumption that she was to pass that along. Um, I did
find cut that that hadn't happened as expediently with his
notification. He reached ocut to me. I responded to him on my
cell phone. And when I got a second notification from him I
responded back and apologized because I was confused as té why
he didn't know.

Q: I'm going to show you an email dated May 18, some six weeks
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notes from what's on the recording that was played during the

Defendant's testimony. And I think this whole —- the whole

| situation with the child's pheone being taken was the child was

using the phone to record dad's -— to record the conversations
with the father. aAnd when -- once the father took the children
home, ‘cause I do recall that, um, there was a witness that was

called, and it could have been Mr. friend or whoever, the phone

iwas given to him. When they arrived at home the children, I

believe that tape is going to reflect that the mother told the
children not to get out of the vehicle.

MRS. LEE: Yes, ma'am.

THE, COURT: That is my recollection because I made notes
concerning that. And I'm not going to say what else my notes
say. I'll do that in my ruling. So, play the tape.

MRS. LEE: Yes, Your Honor. I think I'm gonna -—-

MS. DERRICK: So, is this the same tape we've already heard
back in December?

THE COURT: And frankly, Mrs. Lee, I know what the mother
said on the tape, I have notes concerning it, and it doesn't
reflect what she hag testified to on Direct.

MRS. LEE: Ckay. Well, if the Court does not feel that it's
necessary, then I --—-

THE COURT: Oh, I have very —-- I have notes concerning, um,
what the Court heard. And as I stated, what the mother testified

to on Direct was not the way she behaved in the, um, in the tape

401




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

CROSS/MRS. CAPPS/MRS. LEE 160

recording. My recollection, that she told the children not to
get out of the vehicle.

MRS. LEE: Okay. All right, well, in that event, I don't
think that it's ———

MS8. DERRICK. Necessary.

MRS. LEE: ——-— necessary to, um, play it again. Okay, um, -—=

THE COURT: Nobody is leaving until the phone is-retrieved
is what the Court recalls.

BY MR3. LERL:

Q: Um, now, do you remember Ms. Defrick asking you did you do
anything to rile the children up before they left and you
answered absolutely not? Remember that?

A: Yes, ma'am.

Q: Okay. But yet -- so I'm going to go back again to
Defendant's Exhibit 22 when you tell the children to record dad,
and then 20 minutes later, don't forget to record him; keep the
phone close to him, you don't think that that would rile them
up?

A That was not prior to their leaving the house. If they had
been still in the house I would not have needed to testament -
to text them. That was in response to being called by Emily when
Hal had stormed off from the table and have her tell me very
frightened what was going on.

Q: Okay. And do you believe that he riled them up when you
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from the agreement. I was going to follow it to the letter. I
was going to abide by everything she said, and I was not going
to get caught up for any of that. No, ma'am.

Qs Um, you testified that, or you stated to Ms. Derrick, that
-— that you were hoping you would have a good relationship; that
your parents have a good relationship and they're divorced and
that's what you were hoping for; is that correct?

E: Abselutely--

Q: Do you remember telling both Hal Capps and Hal Heidt that
you wore black to your father’s wedding ---

MS. DERRICK: I'm going to object to that. Because if I'm
not mistaken, this ig like 2015, 2016 or 2014 and I'm not —— to
relitigate what they argued, two lawyers and two hearings back,
is -- is unfair and it is not a part of this Rule and I'm going
to object.

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule vour obiection. You're
going to need to give her an opportunity to finish asking her
questicn. Because I think where she's -- well, finish asking
your question. I'm sure I know where she's going with it.

BY MRS. LEE:

Q1 All right. Although you said that you have your family and
you have such a great relationship with your father and vyour

mother in their diverce and do as well, did you not wear black
to your father's wedding and cry throughout the entire wedding?

A Um, I den't remember what I wore yesterday. My father got
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Acx But I do not, yeah.

Q: Okay. And did you tell Haley Kathryn that Doctor Capps
refused to pay for college?

A: Bbsolutely neot. Although he's made some things quite clear.

MS. DERRICK: Objection again if that occurred after the
filing of the action.

THE COURT: Well, you're obijecting to your client
commenting. She said ---

MS. DERRICK: I'm -- no, ——=

MRS. LEE: I'm not sure when this happened because this has
been an ongoing concern, but I'm certainly going to ask my -
ask, um, —--

THE COURT: BAnd this came up in December 10th, 11th and the
14th because I recall that specifically about the child thinking
that she could go to school out of state because she felt like
her father could afford it.

BY MRS5. LEE:

Q: Now, are you familiar with all of your children's social

accounts?

A: No, ma'am, I'm not.

vH Okay.

Az And --—-

Qs Are you familiar with that social account?

Az Well, I can tell by Haley Kathryn's highlights that she

just received it. This is from 2019. So, I'm going to say that.
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was admitted during Doctor Heidt's testimony. Is that your
recollection, Mrs. Lee?

MRS. LEE: Um, well, Your Honor, I've got -- and Deoctor
Heidt's here for socme reply and, no, ma'am, it is exactly as the
Defendant's 11 showed. Doctor Heidt recommended, um, and this is
supported by Defendant's Number 13 as well, Doctor Heidt

recommended McCarthy, Johnson and Tedd for Mrs. Capps and for

the children he recommended, um, Ellen King, Amy Cantley and

Stephanie Fleming. And, um, that's also -- and he's here on
Reply as well.

MS. DERRICK: And then I'm going to cobject to him being on
Reply because we ~- I intentionally did not go into anything
about Poctor Heildt yesterday with her because she doesn't know
how —— he's already testified. The counselors were communicating
with one another.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, we'll get to that whenever she —-
we’'re at the peoint for her to introduce Reply or Rebuttal
witnesses. ALl right, you may continue.

BY MS. DERRICK:

O Do you remember yesterday when Ms. Floyd asked you about

this if she was asking you if that was counselors for the
children?

Ac: Yes, she was asking me if that was counselors for the
children.

O Is it counselors for the children?
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BY MS. DERRICK:

Q: Does it say —-- who does it say is supposed to initiate
that?
Az “Within 15 days, unless the issues of the children, then

Hal Heidt, with whom the Defendant is in counseling, shall
communicate with the Plaintiff's counselor and they shall work
together to address the alienation issues.” So he would be in
hare, with whom the Defendant is in counseling,—shall
communicate. So that's giving me permission.

Q: All right.

Az It does not say which direction it goes; who's first.

Q: That's right. Right.

A But, had I known that I was wanted to communicate with the
therapist I would have.

Q: Okay. So Doctor Capps did not share this with you?

A No.

M&8. DERRICK: Judge, based on information provided, I need
to come back and finish with Doctor Heidt, um, if it's
permissible to do so, after lunch.

A Um, may I say something?

THE COURT: Based on what information you received?

M5, DERRICK: Uh, that he 4did not hear a certain tape that
we have, so I was going to play it for him. He has sat here for
the last hour saying she's the hailstorm, I guess, and she's the

aggressor and she's got the more energy.
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A: I've got -- there's another tape out there? Is that what

you're saying?

MS.
A Who
MS.
Michelle

DERRICK: A tape.
recorded another tape?
DERRICK: The tape 1 just asked him about, Judge. If

had ever played a tape for him of Doctor Capps being

extremely aggressive,

THE -

COURT: Okay.

A That was ———

THE

MS.

CCURT: So, she doesn't have the tape with her now?

DERRICK: I think it's in her wvehicle. I was not aware

-

that we were going to go this far off the Rule path, but, uh,

since he!
A Did
THE
A: Huh.
THE
parental
MS.
THE
MS.
objected
THE

ma'am. I

5 denied it and he's come in here as a reply --—-—
I say I denied 1t?

COURT: Okay, sir.

COURT: The issue the Court is concerned with is
alienation.

DERRICK: I got that.

COURT: And how is that relevant tc pasrental alienation?
DERRICK: Because he just sat nere, Judge, after I

to him testifying ---

COURT: Parental allienation, I understand that. No;

am not going to allow it. Um, we're not going to play

tit for tat and that's where this is going. Your client
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testified yesterday that she did not tell the child that her
father loved money more than he loved her and that's why —- and
that's my concern. Now, the fact about whether he heard it
played or he heard a tape that she said he played for him is
irrelevant.

MS. DERRICK: Okay.

THE COURT: It's irrelevant. Matter of fact, the same
afgumentrthatryou made ¢n the record about herirecording
individuals without permission puts her in that same position.
No more tit for tat. We're going to end this. Finish up your
questions, Mrs. Lee will ask her final Redirect and we're done
with this witness.

MRS. LEE: No questions, Your Honor,.

MS. DERRICK: I have no gquestions.

TEE CQURT: We're done with you, sir.

A: Okay.

MRS, LEE: And may the witness be excused?

THE COURT: The witness is excused because no one else has a
right or a reason te call him. We're on Reply and only the
Defendant gets to present reply or rebuttal because he's the
individual that has filed the Rule. Any additional witnesses?
And if so, we'll take them after lunch.

MES. LEE: Qkay, I've got one very short one, but after
lunch we'll —-—-

THE COURT: Well, one very short.

510




10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
22
23
24

25

REDIRECT/SHERRY CAPPS/MRS. LEE 300

and then he got into a bad car wreck, I belleve April ninth, I
believe it was of 2018 and, um, he had the girls that night.
His best friend picked the girls up, took them to the emergency
room. I met them there. Michelle came there later. Um, it was
his night to hawve them, and as hurt as he was he didn’t want
them —-- he wanted to keep them that night. And so I assured
Michelle in the hospital room that if he's okay then I'll leave
the girls there. If he's not then I promised I -would bring the
girls home. So, I took -- she took the girls back to Hal's
house, left them there. I brought Hal home around 11, 12 ofclock
at night. He was fine. The doctor ckayed him. I made sure that
ne was there and fine and I made sure the girls were fine and I

left. Maybe was there 15 minutes with them.

Q: Okay.

As I don't have any other recollection of belng at the house
with them. Never, ever was there an cvernight.
0: Ckay. All right, thank you.
A: Yes, ma'am.
THE COURT: Last Recross?
MS. DERRICK: Wothing, Judge.
THE COQURT: All right. Ma'am, you may return to your seatl.
A Thank you.
MRS. LEE: May I supplement my Attcrney's Fee Affidavit?
THE COURT: Yes, we talked about that. Ms. Derrick, do you

need to supplement yours as well.
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MS., DERRICK: I'm going to have to do that tomorrow then. I
didn't -- I didn't,

THE COURT: And that's fine. I mean, this is just something
that because I certainly want the attornevys to get in their
updated bills. You have introduced the Affidavits already and
the fair thing to do would be tc give you both an opportunity to
submit.

M5, DERRICK: And I have no problem, if Anita doesn't mind,
I1'1)l just update mine, email it to her and then get it to yeou in
the morning if wefre still coming back in the morning:; whatever
you decide.

THE COURT: All rigbt. Let me just meet with the attorneys
in chambers.

MRS, LEE: Do you want to mark it or just, how can we do
this?

THE COURT: Was that for Judge's Eyes only or ——-

MRS. LEE: I have a Judge's Eyes only because I have some,
um, ——-

THE COQURT: Offers of settlement?

M3. DERRICK: No, there's no offer.

MRS. LEE: It's not an offer of settlement. I'll take these
letters out, Your Honor.

MS. DERRICK: Yes, please.

THE COURT: Ckay.

M3. DERRICK: I have no preblem with her bill. I have a lot
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of problem with those letters.

THE COURT: So, that will be Defendant's 36, the updated
attorney's fees?

COURT REPORTER: Thirty-seven, Judge.

MRS. LEE: Thirty-seven, I think.

THE COURT: Oh, 37.

MS. DERRICK: And I will send Anita hers in the morning.

MRS. LEE: Okay. That does not include today, but it's, youj
know -—-

THE COURT: Well, just do the same thing that she's doing.

MS. DERRICK: Well, just do the same thing and just update
it in the morning and give me your updated one after today.

MRS. LEE: All right.

MS. DERRICK: And then we can -- we'll do that.

MRS, LEE: Okay. Well, then stop.

M5. DERRICK: Stop, Patsy.

THE COURT: Ckay.

MS. DERRICK: We'll both give them to you in the morning,
Judge.

COURT IN RECESS:

THE COURT: We're back on the record for the Court to
actually announce the date that the Court will rule in this
matter and I am requiring that the parties are present. Um,
initially I planned to rule tomorrow at 11, bui because we went

into the afternoon hour, which is perfectly fine, T will rule on
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June l4th at 12 noon., So, we're just exchanging one Friday for
another. All right.

And just to insure that what I'm saying on the record is an
Order, um, I will prepare it and have it clecked and send it to
the attorneys so that the clients will be —-- their clients are
aware that their presence is reguired June 1l4th and 12.

MS. DERRICK: Thank you, Judge.

‘THE COURT: All right.

MRS. LEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. DERRICK: And we'll exchange our Affidavits.

MRS. LEE: Okay.

MS. DERRICK: Right.

THE COURT: And if you need more time, um, past tomorrow
that's fine.

M5. DERRICK: Okay.

THE COURT: Um, you can have until! the end of the month.

MRS. LEE: Okay. Do, um, —-- can we, never mind. I started to
say can we email them, but we need to get them marked. 50, never
mind. We'll just ---

THE COURT: Yeah, vou want them marked as exhibits?

MRS. LEE: I would think so, yeah.

MS. DERRICK: Maybs.

THE COURT: Well, and this Court Reporter 1s only with me
this week. So, if you want them marked ---

MS. DERRICK: Wefll just mark them in the morning.

545




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24

25

BY THE COURT . 304

THE COURT: Yeah, you might want to mark those tomorrow.

MRS. LEE: Are you going to be here in the morning?

THE COURT: Oh, absclutely.

MRS. LEE: Ckay.

MS. DERRICK: All right, we'll just bring them in the
merning so we won't have to worry abecut that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR3. LEE: That will be fine.

THE COURT: All right, great. The parties are excused.

ME3. DERRICK: Thank you, Judge.

(END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT CF RECORD)
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THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
4614 OLEANDER DRIVE,
MYRTLE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA 29577

THOMAS C. BRITTAIN

MARY MADISON BRITTAIN LANGWAY 843-449-8362

A. PRESTON BRITTAIN 8434976124

T. CASE BRITTAIN, JR. : ’ www.bridtainlawfirm.com
December 5, 2017

Via email at: jholmesj@sccourts.org

The Honorable Jan Bromell Holmes
Judicial Center Complex

401 Cleland Street, Suite 238
PEO-Box 479

Georgetown, SC 29442

RE:  Michelle Davis Capps vs. Joseph Harold Capps
Case Number 2014-DR-26-1563

Dear Judge Holmes:

The above case was before you on a Rule to Show Cause from J anuary 30, 2017 through February
1,2017 and an agreement was reached between the parties on the last day of trial. Part of the Order
was that the individual counselors for both parties were to recommend three to. four counselors for
the parties teenage children so that the children could enter counseling, The names, as
recommended by the counselors, where to be submitted to you and you would make the final
decision regarding where the children would attend counseling. [ have attached a copy of page 4
of the Rule to Show Cause Order for your reference.

Dr. Helen Bayne, counselor for Michelle Capps since April 5, 2017 recommended the following
counselor choices for the Capps children;

1. Edward Conner — 843-268-0580

2. Elizabeth Nixon — 843-455-2258

3. Marie Woodward — 843-410-4943

These recommendations were forwarded to Ms. Floyd’s office on May 17, 2017 and again on
September 19, 2017, It is my understanding from speaking with Edward Conner, that he is not.
taking any new patients at this time. In speaking with Dr, Bayne, she recommends James Garvey
in place of Edward Conner. Dr. Garvey’s phone number is 843-450-0636.

It is my understanding in speaking with Ms. Floyd that the therapists she is recommending are
Ellen King, Michelle Foglia and Dr. Alicia Benedetto. | am unsure as to if any of these
recommendations are coming from Hal Heidt, Mr. Capps therapist or not. According to Dr, Bayne,
she has attempted to contact Hal Heidt on several occasions to discuss the ongoing issues between
the parties, but Hal Heidt has not returned any of her messages.
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I am concerned with the recommendation of Dr: Benedetto as her practice is in Columbia, South
Carolina, and it is not feasible for the children, who have active and busy school and activity
schedules to be required to drive from Myrtle Beach to Columbia to see a counselor.

While I appreciate that Ms. Floyd is seeking a therapists for the children who specializes in
alienation issues, I must point out that the Rule to Show Cause Order only speaks of alienation
issues being addressed with and between the counselors for the adults in this matter and does not
state that the counselor for the children must specialize or have previous experience with this issue.
Further, at the preset time, there are not any accredited counseling associations that offer a
specialization in alienation and therefore, no counselor is able to “specialize” in this area.

Kindly review the list of provided counselors and advise which counselor you would suggest the
children begin seeing or in the alternative, if you have knowledge of another counselor who is
better equipped to address their needs, please advise.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. I look forward to hearing from you soon. -

With warm regards, [ am

Yours truly,

‘THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.

Mary Madison Brittain Langway
MMBL/tln

Enclosures: as stated

ce: Michelle Capps (via email)
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THOMAS C. BRITTADRN

MARY MADISON BRITTAIN LANGWAY
A.FRESTON BRITTAIN

T. CASE BRITTAIN, JR.

May 17, 2017

VId EMAIL

Anita Floyd

1115 Third Avenue
Conway, 83C 29526

RE: Hal Capps vs. Michelle Capps
Cage No.: 2016-DR-26-931

Dear Anita,

My client has been in counseling with Dr. Helen Bayne. Her first appointment with her was on April 5,
2017; April 12, 2017; April 20, 2017; May 1, 2017 and she also has an appointment scheduled for today,
May 17, 2017. Dr. Bayne has been given a copy of the final order and is fully aware of the purpose of
counseling.

Dr. Bayne has not heard from Dr. Heidt but would be 'happy to hear from him. Her contact information is
843-347-6954.

[, Bayne recommends that the girls would benefit from seeing one of the following counselors. It is my
understanding that these names will be submitted to Judge Holmes for her choosing of who the children
will counse] with: Edward Connor (§43-268-0580; Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Marie
Woodward, LPC (843-410-4943).

My client has informed me that Mr. Capps took it upon himself to schedule a counseling appointment for
himself and Haley Kathryn with Stephanie Fleming. Kindly advise why he felt the need to do so as Judge
Holmes was specific in her direction that she be the one to choose the counselor for the children.

I will discuss the brick columns with my client and addrass that issue in a separate letter.
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Very truly yours,
THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.

Cﬁﬂ!&{}f—-ﬂt&%ﬂ@cﬁhﬂmj\
d T

Mary Madison Brittain Langway
MMBL:rln

Enclosures: as stated
ce: Michelle Capps (via email)

B43-449-8562

EAX B43-497-6124
www.brittainlawfirm.com
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THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P A.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
4614 OLEANDER DRIVE
MYRTLE BEACE, SOUTE CAROLINA 29577

THOMAS C. BRITTAIN 843-449-8562
MARY MADISON BRITTAIN LANGWAY FAX 843-497-6124
A. PRESTON BRITTAIN www.hittainlawfirm.com
T. CASE BRITTAIN, JR.

September 19, 2017

VIA EMAIL AND
FIRST CLASS MAIL
Anita Floyd

1115 Third Avenue
Conway, SC 29526

RE: - Hal Capps vs: Michelle Capps—
Case No.: 2016-DR-26-931

Dear Anita,

It has come to my attention that the Capps children have not yet seen a counselor. On May 17, 2017, 1
provided your office with a list of three counselors that Dr. Bayne was suggesting for the girls. Has Dr.
Heidt submitted his list of possible counselors to your office? Is your client still seeing Hal Heid{? [ have
contacted Sharon at Judge Holmes office and she stated that they have not received names of potential
counselors as of yet. As you are aware, the Order states that “the two counselors shall recommend 3-4
names of counselors for the children to see. These names shall be submitted to The Honorable Jan
Bromell-Halmes, who shall select the connselor for the children from this Hst™,

My client feels that it is very important that the children have counseling especially considering the
instances that have occurred during the summer break from school. It s my understanding that.Dr. Bayne
has called Dr. Heidt on at multiple occasions to discuss this matter with him and he has yet to retum her
calls.

If you could please provide Dr. Heidt’s list of three potential names for counselors to my office, I will
forward all of the names to Judge Holmes for her choosing. Dr. Bayne recommended the following
counselors; Edward Connor (843-268-0580; Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Marie Woodward,
LPC (843-410-4943). If Dr. Heidt is in agreement with Dr. Bayne’s recommendations, please advise and I
will submit those names to Judge Holmes for her selection so that the girls can begin counseling.

With regards to the brick column matter. My client has always been agreeable to using Rich Kolb and
would also agree to use Antwine Matthews or Chapman Construction provided that the work be
completed within a reasonable timeframe and that Mr. Capps pay attomey’s fees that Michelle has
incurred in dealing with the brick columns. I Mr. Capps is not agreeable to these terms, then Ms. Capps
will pursue the matter in Magistrates Court.

Ms. Capps will be available on the following dates and times for the contractors to come to her home and
meet regarding replacing the columns: September 25% between 12:00 p.m. and 4;00 p.m., September 26"
between 12:00 p.m. and 3:00 p.m., September 28" between 12:00 p.m. and 2:00 p.m, and 5:00 p.m. and
7:00 p.m., October 2* between 1:00 p.m. and 3:00 p.m., Ociober 3" between 1:00 p.m. and 3:00 p.m, and
Qctober 5% between 5:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. If the above dates and times do not work with any of the



THE BRITTAIN Law FIrRM, P A,
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
4514 QLEANDER DRIVE
MYRTLE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLR\TA 29577

THOMAS C. BRITTAIN 843-449-B562
MARY MADISON BRITTARY LANCWAY FAX B43-497-6124

A, PRESTCN BRITTAIN wwwibrittzinlawfrm.com
T. {“ASE BRITTAIN, JR.

November 21, 2017

14 EMAIL ONLY
Anite Floyd

1115 Third Avenus
Conway, 8C 29526

RE: Hal Capps vs. Michelle Capps
Dear Anita,

Anita, per our conrversation last week, our names of the recommended counselors from Helen Bayne are as
follows: Edward Connor {843-268-0580); Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Marie Woodward, LPC
(843-410-4943). These are the same names as outlined in our letiers to your office dated May 17" and
September 197,

Kindly have Hal Heidt provide his list of three recommended therapists and we will write a letter to Judge
Holmes with the six supgested counselors names.

With regards to Mr. Capps and or his fiancé dropping off the child support and alimony check to our office,
the partners of my firm are simply not agreeable to this as we have done this in the past and it did not go
well. Mr, Capps can mail the payments fo my client and thereby avoid a third-party go between. As the
checks for November were aiready dropped off at my office addressed to me, I will forward that to my
client, but this will be the last time I do so.

Would you be willing to draft a joint Jetter to Judge Holmes, or would you prefer that I draft the letter?

As such, in order to get counscling started, my client needs to have the names of counselors submitted to
Judge Holmes in order to move forward.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, 1look forward to hearing from you soon.

Very truly yours,
THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.

. S B
L-.r r \ih%'u lkkﬂh&m@ﬂnﬁgd_ 3 .

Mary Madison Brittain Langway
MMBL:rin
ce Michelle Capps (via email)
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suggested contractor's schedules, they should contact Mr. Capps directly and she will schedule a time that
works for all parties. Please discuss this matter with your client and let me know his thoughts.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Very truly yours,
THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.

e ]q{\&om\/@ : OEOWA
Mary Maldishj:Brittain Langway W
MMBL:rln

Enclosures: as stated
ce:  Michelle Capps (via email)

ST



THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
4614 OLEANDER DRIVE
MYRTLE BEACH, SOUTH CAROLINA 29577

THOMAS C. BRITTAIN B43-440-B562
MARY MADISON BRITTAIN LANGWAY FAX B43-497-6124
A.PRESTON BRITTAIN www.brittainlawfirm.com
T, CASE BRITTAIN, JR.

May 17, 2017

VIA EMAXL,

Anita Floyd

1115 Third Avenue
Conway, SC 29526

RE:  Hal Capps vs, Michelle Capps
T ' Case No.: 2016-DR-26-931

Dear Anita,

My client has been in counseling with Dr. Helen Bayne. Her first appointment with her was on April 5,
2017; April 12, 2017; April 20, 2017; May 1, 2017 and she also has an appointment scheduled for today,
May 17,2017, Dr. Bayne has been given a copy of the final order and is fully aware of the purpose of
counseling,

Dr, Bayne has not heard from Dr, Heidt but would be ﬁappy to hear from him. Her contact information is
843-347-6954,

Dr. Bayne recommends that the girls would benefit from seeing one of the following counselors. It is my
understanding that these names will be submitted to Judge Holmes for her choosing of who the children
will counsel with: Edward Connor (843-268-0580; Elizabeth Nixon, LPC (843-455-2258) or Maris
Woodward, LPC (843-410-4943).

My client has informed me that Mr, Capps taok it upon himseif to schedule a counseling appointment for
himself and Haley Kathryn with Stephanie Fleming, Kindly advise why he felt the need to do so as Judge
Holmes was specific in her direction that she be the one to choose the counselor for the children.

I'will discuss the brick columns with my client and address that issue in a separate letter.
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, I look forward to hearing from you soon,

Very truly yours,
THE BRITTAIN LAW FIRM, P.A.

Az {rucns e
i ‘a\- A e I\‘z{lkﬂj_

Mary Madison Brittain Langway
MMBL:rin

Enclosures: as stated
ol Michelle Capps (via email)
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9.

the Order as it pertains to visiting with Defendant. [ find that parents are to
parent and not to-allow their children to set their own rules as to whether they
will comply with the Court’s Order. Childrenhave a right to be heard and
respected; however, giving in to their demnands to entice or encourage them to
follow (or riot follow) the Court Order or the rules of a parent’s home shonld be
non-negotiable.

Regarding paragraphs 7] and 7]: I find that Plaintiff has violated Section 41 of
the Custody Agreement [Final Order Approving Agreemient, filed July 22, 2014]
which provides that the parties shall be prohibited, forbidden, restrained and
enjoined from degrading or denigrating the other in the presence of the children.
Specifically Plaintiff instructed the children to record conversations with
Defendant during his visitation, as well as encouraged them not to vacate
Defendant’s automobile until the cell'phone in issue; on which she had
instructed them to record their father, was located. This type of behavior
promotes disrespect, degradation and denigration of the father by the children -
with not just the peimission, but the insistence, of Plaintiff. [ find that Plaintiff is
in willful violation of the Court Order as it pertains to this provision.

| find that Plaintiff’s actions in denying, refusing and interfering with Defendant

depositing the alimony and child support amounts in Plaintiff's bank account, as

had been established between the parties, was a form of harassment. According

to Defendant’s testimony, Plaintiff's actions in these regards corresponded with

his engagement to his now-Wife.

I find that Plaintiff’s refusal to resolve the issue of Defendantrepairing the brick
columns as he had clearly tried to do - as was established through the testimony
of Defendant as well as several witnesses - was also a form of harassment.

I find that the parties are not allowed to dictate activities for the minor child (the
parties’ oldest child is now emancipated) during time periods that are allotted to

the other parent. The parties are not allowed to schedule or aliow the child to

Capps vs. Capps
Qrder Following RTSC
Case Nwwmber: 2014-DR-26-1563 158
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13.

14.

15.

| find that Defendant incurred a great deal of attorney’s fees in his efforts to gain
compliance with the Order and to hold Plaintiff accountable for her failure to
comply with the Order. | further find that Defendant retained a well-respected,
seasoned attorney to assist him, and that her hourly rate is commensurate with
other attorneys who have her experience. 1 tind that the time that Mrs. Lee
invested in this matter is reasonable considering the issues thaf wereinvolved.
Finally, I note Defendant’s success in this litigation,

Although there is a great deal of disparity in the parties’ incomes, I find that
Plaintiff has sufficient income with which to satisfy a portion of Defendant’s fees
and costs, as will be discussed more fully hereinbelow. '

As the parties are aware, I presided over the first RTSC hearing; however, the
parties reached an agreement which prevented this Court from making any
findings of fact. Generally, I do not place an individual in jail the first time that ]
make a ruling with respect to a Rule to Show Cause. However, T do admonish
the parties that being found in willful violation of the Court Order may subject

the offending party to jail time of up to one year; a fine of up to $1,500; as well as

- up to 300 hours of community service.

16.

17.

In this instance, I find that this Court has been as generous as it could be when
considering the conduct which has been displayed by Plaintiff. 1 admonish
Plaintiff that jail time was considered; however, this Court determined that jail
time would not be beneficial because the alienation has already occurred.
However, if her behavior continues, it will not be a problem for me, or for any
other judge, to give jail time. Visitation is mandatory, and if the mother cannot
ensure that the minor child exercises her visitation per the Court Order, then
perhaps custody should be changed.

I find that Plaintiff shall be obligated to pay $40,000 of Defendant’s attorney’s
fees, to be paid as follows: Defendant shall deduct the sum of $2,500 from his

monthly alimony payment to Plaintiff beginning with the payment which is due

Capps-vs. Capps
Order Following RTSC
Case Nwyber: 2014-DR-26-1563
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August 1, 2019. These deductions shall continue until this $40,000 obligation is
satisfied in full, which will be after the $2,500 deduction on November 1, 2020.
Thus, beginning with the December, 2020 alimony payment, the full amount of
alimony due Plaintiff shall be paid to her according to the terms of the Final
Cirder,
18. In addition to attorney’s fees, I find that Plaintiff shall pay a fine of $1,500 to the
Clerk of Court, which fine shall be paid within 48 hours of this Order being filed.
19. Finally, l admonish Plaintiff that theése children have two families and everyone
should be allowed to bestow their Iove and support on these children. Tt is very
| unfortunate that one would be so selfish that because the relationship did not
work out, there would be an attemnpt to interfere with the relationship between
the children and their paternal relatives. This admanition is based upon the
Court being made aware that Defendant’s visitation with Emily had taken place
without incident from December 141, 2018 until the week before this RTSC
hearing resumed, but that there had beenno visitation during the week
preceding this hearing. In addition, there was testimony regarding the
unsuccessful attempts by the paternal grandparents to visit with the children;
their attempts to attend functions, which were denjed; and of course the occasion
noted hereinabove when Plaintiff picked up E.C. from school for no reason but to
deny the paternal grandfather the opportunity to spend a few minutes with this
child, Going forward, this manipulation and disrespect will not be tolerated.
Based upon the above-recited Findings of Fact, | make the following Conclusions of
Law:
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
The General Assembly has vested with the Family Courts of this State the
exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determine actions related to custody and visitation,

and once an Order has been issued, to enforce that Order through its powers of

Page7

contempt. Therefore, it is

Capps vs. Capps %\x

Ordey Followwing RTSC
Case Number: 2014-DR-26-1563
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STATE GF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTYOF  HORRY

MICHELLE DAVIS CAPPS,

PlaintifT,
v,

JOSPEH HAROLD CAPPS, JR.,

Defendant.

S

el S N

IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

FINANCIAL DECLARATION OF
MICHELLE DAVIS CAPPS

Case No.: 2014-DR-26-1563

HUSBAND/FATHER:

WIFE/MOTHER:

Address

Address

Ape

Age

48

~ {Occupation

Occupation

Stay at home Mom

Employer

Employer

Employer Address

Employer
Address

Gross Monthly Income

Hushand/Father

Wife/Mother

Principal Earnings from Employment’

Overtime, Tips, Commissior, Bonuses®

Pensions, Retirement, and Annuities Income

Additional Employment Income

Social Security Benelils ($8A) and VA Benefits

Disability and Worker's Compensation Benefits

Unempioyment and AFDC

Spousal or Child Support (from other marriage/relationship)

$14,000.00

Dividends, Interest, Trust Income, and Capital Giains

Rental Income and Business Profits

Other: Reinbursernent of miles and gas

TOTAL GROSS MONTHLY INCOME

$14,000.00

Payroll Deductions from Mouthly Income

Husband/Father

Wife/Mother

Federa! Income Tax’

$2,540,00

State Income Tax

$1,390.00

Social Secuirty and Medicare Tax (FICA)

Self-Employment Tax

Healih/Dernlal/Yision Insurance

Healih and Dental Ingurance (Child)

Uniforms

Volunfary Retirement Contribution (4071(k). 457, IRA)

Mandatory Retirement Contribution

PLAINTIFF'S
EXHIBIT

]
Ll

Oyra $-27-15

Health Savingx Account

Life Insurance

TOTAL MONTHLY DEDUCTIONS

$3,930.00

NET MONTHLY INCOME

$10,070.00

SCCA 430 (2/2009)
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Estimate monthly expenses: (Specify which party is the custodial parent and list name and relationship of all members of

household whose expenses are included.

Plaintiff - Michelle Capps

SUBTOTAL

K , 8,913.00

Real Property Tax on Residence(s)

MONTHLY EXPENSES Hushand/Father Wife/Mother
Residential Rent Payment
Note or Morigage Payment on Residence(s) $3,613.00
Food and Household Supplies® $2,197.00
Utilities, Water, and Garbage Collection $769.00
Telephone and Cellular Phone $495.00
Medical, Dental and Disability Insurance Premiums (not
deducted from paycheck) $707.00
Life Insurance Premiutms (not deducted from paycheck) $38.00
Child Support (from other relationship)
Work Related Day Care
Spousal Support (from prior marriage)
Auta Payment $200.00
Auto Insurance, taxes, gasolme and mamtenance $884.00

$158.00

Maintenance for household®

SUBTOTAL: $ 4,349.00

Adult Clothing $150.00
Children's Clothing” $300.00
Cable Television, Satellite, and Internet/Online Serwces

Laundry and Dry C!eanmgw $50.00
Medical and Dental Expenses {(not paid by insurance) $100.00
Prescriptions, Glasses, and Contacts {not paid by insurance) $150.00
Children's incidental expenses ' $600.00
School lunches, supplies, field trips, and fees'~ $200.00
Entertainment ™ $1,200.00
Adult Incidental expenses' $950.00
Other: Pets $150.00
All Instaliment payments” $341.00

$ 13,262.00

TOTAL MONTHLY EXPENSES:
Installment Loan Payments Section
Creditor For Monthily Payment Balance Owed by '*
Santee Cooper Smart Energy Loan (Windaws) 126.00 7,540.00| Michelle Capps
Santee Cooper Smart Energy Loan (HVAC) 215.00 12,435.00( Michelie Capps
TOTALS $341.00 $19,875.00( Michelle Capps
SCCA 430 (2/2009) 2o0f'5



Other Debts and Obligations #20f payable in monthly instalhments

Creditor For Date Payable Balance Owed by ¢
. Are you currently in Bankruptcy: L] ves NO
Are any obligations listed above, including mortgage and note payments, in arrears: (] ves NO

If yest, please list the obligations in arrears.

All Marital Property Known to Parties

Assets Husband/Father Wife/Mother Joint
i Cash and Money in Checking Account(s)'’

- [Money in Savings Account(s}, Credit Union, Money Mkt,
! or Cert. of Dep.'®

Value of Voluntary Retirement Account(s)

Value of Pension Account

Value of Publicly Held Stocks, Bonds, Securities, Mutual
Funds'®

Vilue of Privately Held Stocks and Other Business

Value of Real Estate - Net of Mortgage Balances

Value of All Other Property'’

TOTAL ASSETS
Any Non Marital Property Known to Parties
Estimate
Date of Source of Funds)Present Market
Description of Asset Title Owner Acquisition to Acquirer Yalue

If total assets are less than $300,000, sign and have notarized,

If total assets are greater than $300,000, itemize assets by completing additional sections below and sign and have
notarized.

Financial Accounts Section'®

Owner Name of Institution Type of Account Balance

SCCA 430 (2/2009) Jofs




Voluntary Retirement Accounts and Pension Accounts Section

Type of Aceount

Yalue

Publicly Held Stocks, Bonds, Securities, Mutual Funds Section (I\Ton-Retirement)lg

Name of Company Number of Shares/Type of Account Value
Real Esate Section™®
Mortgage Mortgage
Owner Address ' Value Balance Equity :
!
]
TOTALS $ - i
Other Property Section'’
Owner Description of Asset Yalue Loan Balance Equity
TOTALS

o tie 10 aoi G@w@/ﬁ

ﬁ—\é ZU V7 Siganture

Sworn to before me this ZZ day of-Beecentbers 20187

(SEAL)

Notary Pubfic for South Carolma
My commisgion expires:

! Tt

SCCA 430 (2/2009)
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I A recent paystub should be attached to the Financial Declaration. To compute Principal Earnings from Employment, first determine
whether you are paid semi-monthly, biweekly, or weekly. If you are paid semi-monthly, multiply the gross amount of your pay check by
two. Ifyou are paid biweekly, multiply the gross amount of your pay check by 26 and then divide by [2. If you are paid weekly,
multiply the amount of your paycheck by 52 and divide by twelve. Round to the nearest whole dollar.

2 To compute Overtime, Tips, Commission, and/or Bonuses, take an average of your monthly earnings from overtime, tips, commis- sion,
bonuses, etc. from the past three years or the length of employment if employed less than three years {including this year).

3 To compute State, Local, and Social Security Tax deductions, use the same formula used to compute principal eamings in endnote |
above, or consult or have your attorney consult an accountant.

4 Net monthly Income is equal to Total Gross Monthly Income minus Total Monthly Deductions.

5 Do not include any expense in the Monthly Expenses section that has already been included in the Deductions from Gross Monthly
income on page one of he Declaration.

6 Food Expense is to include the cost of groceries, toiletries, cleaning supplies, and casual eating out,

7 Auto Expenses are to include gasoline, oil changes, tune-ups, tire replacement, maintenance, and related items.

"8 Maintenance for Household is to include appliance and household repairs, landscaping, hiouse cleaning, pest control, pool service, dlarm

service, and other related items.

9 Clothing Expense is to include shoes and clothing purchases, clothing repair and alterations, and related items.

16 Laundry Expense is to include the cost of laundry service, dry cleaning, and related items.

11 Children’s Incidental Expenses are to include allowance, summer camp, nursery school, baby sitters, lessons, activities, participatory
sports, and related items.

12 School Expense is to include tuition, supplies, field trips, dues, tutors, locker rentals, school lunches, and other related items.
13 Entertainment is to include movies, theater, vacations, sporting events, compact discs, digital video discs, and related items.

14 Adult Incidental Expenses are to include cosmetics, hair and nail care, books, magazines, newspapers, business dues, memberships, pets,
charity, religious dues or tithes, gifts, bank charges, hobbies, and related items.

15 Al lnstallment Loan Payments is the total amount itemized in Installment Loan Payments Section, which should include all loan
payments not already listed as a monthly expense. Examples: home equity loan, credit cards, etc.

16 Indicate which spouse legally owes the payment (husband, wife, or jeint).

17 Other property is to include automobiles (minus loan balance), boats {minus loan balance), furniture, furmishings, china, silver, jewelry,
collectibles, and other personal property.

18 Itemize Financial Accounts such as checking, savings, credit union, money market, or certificate of deposit accounts in the Financial
‘Accounts Section.

19 Itemize Publicly Held Stocks, Bonds, Securities, Stock Options and Mutual Funds (excluding retirement accounts) in the Publicly Held
Stocks, Bonds, Securities, Mutual Funds Section.

20 Itemize each parcel of Real Estate in the Real Estate Section.

SCCA 430 (2/2009) 50f5



STATE OF SOUTH CARCLINA ) IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE
) FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF HORRY ) FILE NO. 2014-DR-26-1563
MICHELLE DAVIS CAPPS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
V. ) AFFIDAYVIT IN SUPPORT OF
) CLAIM FOR ATTORNEY FEES
JOSEPH HAROLD CAFPPS, JR., )
)
Defendant. )
)

PERSONALLY appeared before me, Julaan Derrick, who after being duly sworn, deposes
and says:

shit she 1s a practicing attormey in Conway, South Carolina. That the undersigned was
contracted by the Plaintiff on or ébout the 11th day of September, 2018, in order to represert her in
regards to an action for equitable division, alimony, and attorney fees.

To date, the Affiant would show that she and her office have expended 98.70 hours in regards
to conferences, preparation of the pleadings, telephone conferences, attending hearings, preparing
for this trial.

This Affiant would show that she has been a member of the Bar for the State of South
: =nlin? in the County of Horry since May of 1982. The Affiant would further show that she is a
cwcmber of the South Carolina Bar Association. The Affiant would show that he normally and
regularly charges $300.00 hour on this type of case,

The Affiant would submit this Affidavit in support of the request by the Plaintiff for
attorney’s fees and costs. The Affiant requests attorney’s fees and suit costs in the current sum of

$26.083.00

2014-DR-26-1563 1




FURTHER DEPONENT SAITH NOT.

SWORN to and subscribed before me
this 22nd day of MAY, 2019.

(L.S.)
NOTARY CFOR'S UT AROLINA
My Commission Expires: ' « 2oZ

2014-DR-26-1563 2



DATE

Mar-06-18

Mar-09-18

Mar-15-18

Mar-16-18
Mar-18-18

Mar-20-18

Mar-23-18

Mar-26-18

Julaan Derrick-Lawrence

Attorney at Law

1422 4th AVENUE
CONWAY, SC 29526

MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 286, Conway, SC 29528

PHONE (843) 488-0881 FAX (843) 488-0884

May 20, 2019

Michelle Capps

Kﬁﬁ(&l c/f?ﬂ( Client Number 181818

) — CInv #: Sample
DESCRIPTION HOURS AMOUNT LAWYER
Conf. with client, review document from client 1.70 510.00 ID
Open new client file 0.30 27.00 TB
Listened to tape recordings, conf. with client, 2.90 870.00 JD
call to MMBL
Open file in computer 0.20 18.00 DC
Research counselors 0.20 60.00 ID
Dictate letter, review email, revised letter (.10 30.00 D
Emails and listened to recording 0.40 36.00 - RS
Letter to AF, call to client, call from client 0.70 63.00 TB
Call from client, note to JD 0.10 8.00 DC
Review email from Anita Lee, responded to 0.10 30.00 JD
ernail
Emails 0.20 18.00 RS



Mar-27-18
Mar-29-18

Apr-05-18

Apr-06-18

Apr-09-18
Apr-17-18

Apr-18-18

Apr-20-18

Apr-24-18

Apr-25-18

Apr-206-18
Apr-27-18
May-01-18
May-02-18

May-03-18

L agc L

Call to client

Call to AF

Conf. with Debra, review Notice, dictate letter

to A. Lee, call to client

Prepare Notice of Rep, letter to A. Lee, scan
and email '

To courthouse to file
Organize and open brown file
Letter to A. Lee, call to client, scan and email

to client, email from client, print out for J D,
revise letter, send out

Email from Bridgett, respond

Review email, respond to email

Review message, email client, review email
Call to AF's office, note to JD

Call to Anita Floyd

Call to client, email from client, print out for
JD

Review email, email message to client
Email from hearing clerk, print out
Email client per JD

Letter to client, scan and email

Review letter, dictate letter, call to client
Type letter to Anita Lee

Letter to client, scan and email

Letter to client

Email from client, respond

1.60

0.50

0.60

0.20

0.30

0.10

0.30

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10
0.10
0.10
0.20
1.20
0.40
0.10
0.10

0.10

480.00
150.00

180.00

18.00

27.00
9.00

27.00

9.00
30.00
30.00

9.00
30.00

9.00

30.00
9.00
9.00

18.00

360.00

36.00
9.00
9.00

9.00
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JD
ID

JD

DC

RS
TB

DC

DC
D
JD
DC
D

DC

D
DC
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DC
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DC
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May-04-18

May-10-18

- May-18-18

May-21-18

May-24-18

May-25-18

Jun-07-18
Jun-22-18

Jul-02-18

fal-05-18

Tul-06-18

Jui-09-18

Jul-10-18

Jul-17-18

Jul-25-18

L rapge 2

Email from client, print out for JD
Call to A. Floyd
Call to client

Revise letter to AFL (2), scan and email to
client

Email from client, respond, email from client,

print out for JD

Review email from client, revised letter,
revised letter 2nd time

Email letter

+

Organize emails and clean up file, typed letter

to AL, mailed to client

Scan and email to client

Call from client, note to JD

Call to client

Call from client, note to JD

Review email, dictate letter to client
Letter to client, scan and email

Review email and document from client
Open new client file

Call to client

Review RTSC, assist with Return to RTSC
Work on Return

Call from client

Conf. with client

Conf. with client

Met with client

0.10

0.10

1.00

0.10

0.60

0.30

0.70

0.10

0.10

0.60

0.10

0.10

0.20

0.10

.40

0.90

0.10

1.70

1.10

0.60

9.00

30.00

300.00

18.00

9.00

180.00

27.00

63.00

9.00

9.00

180.00

8.00

30.00

18.00

30.00

36.00

270.00

50.00

200.00

9.00

510.00

330.00

150.00
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Aug-07-18

Aug-08-18

Aug-09-18

Aug-10-18

Aug-22-18

Aug-23-18

Aug-27-18
Aug-28-18
Aug-30-18
Sep-05-18
Sep-07-18
Sep-10-18
Sep-18-18
Sep-27-18
Oct-09-18
Oet-19-18

Oct-24-18

WALLLPILT rage 4

Review info in file, worked on Return

Conf. with client, dictate letter, review info
from client

Proof Return to RTSC

Prepare Return to Rule, revise numerous times

Revise Return, type letter to A. Lee, revise
letter

Review message

Review letter, email to client

To courthouse to file

Review email

Email

Call to client

Call from client

Call from clie.nt

Call from client

Review email, cali to client

Call to client

Call from Client.

Call to Anita Floyd. Call to client.
Reviewed subpoena issued by Anita.
letter to client, scan and email
Client called, left RTSC message for ID.
Call to client

Conference with client.

1.50

2.60

0.30

1.50

0.30

0.10

0.10

0.30

0.10

0.10
0.40
0.10
0.10
0.10
0.70
0.50
0.70
0.30
0.10
0.10
0.10
0.40

1.60

450.00

780.00

75.00

135.00
27.00

30.00
9.00
27.00
30.00
9.00
100.00
9.00
9.00
2.00
210.00
150.00
210.00
90.00
30.00
9.00
9.00
120.00

480.00
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Nov-01-18

Nov-(09-18
Nov-20-18
Nov-21-18

Nov-27-18

Nov-28-18

Nov-30-18
Dec-03-18

Dec-04-18

Dec-05-18

Dec-06-18

Dec-07-18

Dec-08-18
Dec-09-18

Dec-10-18

I_JalllleG

rage >

Review email from Anita Floyd. Call to client.
Conference call with me, Anita, and Ken
Smith.

Schedule Telephone conference-Jutaan, Anita
Floyd, Ken Smith

Call to client.
Call to Anita Floyd.
Call to client.

Calls to client and Anita Floyd. Call to hearing
clerk.

Call to Client/Call from Bridget at Anita's
office/Review email

Call to Client/Review Email
Call to Client/Call to Anita Floyd
Conference with Client

Review subpoena info/Reviewed information
in file/Respond to email/call to client

Call to client

prepare subpoenas

Call to Witness
Conference with Client

copy exhibits, type letter to anita floyd, prepare
AQOS, scan docs for file

Review Information in the file/Review Body
Camera Tape

Review Information in the file/Conference
with client

Hearing/Conference with Client

calls to GGraham re testifying, prep exhibits

1.9¢

0.20

0.50

0.70

0.80

0.60

0.30

0.30

0.70

1.70

0.50

0.40

0.50

0.10

2.50

0.70

0.70

4.60

10.00

0.00

1.10

570.00

18.00

150.00

210.00

240,00

180.00

90.00

90.00

2106.00

510.00

150.00

120.00
125.00

30.00
750.00

175.00

210.00

1,380.00

3,000.00
0.00

275.00
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Dec-11-18
Dec-12-18
Dec-13-18

Dec-14-18

Jan-04-19
_Jan-06-19

Jan-08-19

Jan-11-19
Jan-18-19
Jan-30-19
Feb-05-19
Feb-06-19
Feb-07-19
Feb-15-19

Feb-21-19

Mar-05-19
Mar-19-19

Mar-22-19

N rags v

Call from Robert Todd about case.
Prepare Financial Declaration

Prepare Financial Declaration/Copies for court

Hearing
Called client to schedule appointment
Conference with Client

attend court, conference with Judge Bromell
Holmes

Review Email from Client/Respond to Email

. Print off email/Delivered to Julaan

Review Email

Email and Respond Copy to JD
Called client about bill

Judges office called in/Returned their cali
Called about status of invoice
Schedule hearing

Review Email and respond to email
Print out order for JD

Call to client

Review Email

Called about Bill

Call to Anita

Review Email/Respond to Email

Call to ¢client.6

0.10
0.40

0.70

6.20

0.10

2.20

4.00

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.20

0.10

0.20

0.10

0.10

1.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.10

0.60

9.00
36.00

63.00

1,860.00
9.00
660.00

1,200.00

30.00
9.00
30.00
9.00
9.00
18.00
9.00
18.00
30.00
9.00
300.00
30.00
18.00
90.00
30.00

180.00
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‘Invoice #:

Mar-29-19
Apr-01-19

Apr-08-19

Apr-09-19
API--]. 1-19
Apr- 1.2- 19
May-14-19

May-15-19

~May-17-19

May-19-19

May-21-19

Sample

Page 7

Call To Anita
Client called in Message to JD

Review email/dictate letter/conference with
Rhette call to client

Letter to Anita Floyd/Spoke to JD

Letter to Ken Smith /edited lefter to attorney
Review letter/Subpoena

Conference with Client

Call to client/Dictate letter/dictate subpoenas
Conference with client/copied exhibits

Subpoena Dr Ken Smith/Subpoena Police

+ Officer Hill/Call process server

Call to Client Review information in
file/Prepare for Hearing

Conference with client/Review information in
file/Prepare for trial

Totals

0.40
0.30

0.70

2.10

0.50

0.10

3.00

0.60

2.20

0.80
270

3.50

98.70  $26.083.00

120.00

27.00

- 210.00

189.00
45.00
30.00

900.00

180.00

660.00

72.00

810.00

1,050.00

May 20, 2019

JD
B

JD

RS
RS
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D
JD
D

B

D

D
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PROCEEDINGS
{(Whereupon, the following proceedings started at 11:50 a.m.)
THE CCURT: This is Case No. 2014-DR-26-1563, Michelle
Davis Capps wversus Joseph Harold Capps, Jr. Present at the
call of the cazse is the plaintiff, with her attorneys,
Mr. Greg Forman and Ms. Julaan Derrick. The defendant is
present with his attcrney, Ms. Anita Floyd Lee.

The parties are before the Court based cn a remand from

the Court of Appeals, remanding this matter kack to the Court
to reconstruct the record from a Rule to Show Cause hearing
that coccurred on December 10th and 11th, 2018.

From my review of the Court of Appeals records, the
parties were certainly given an opportunity to agree or to
reach some type of agreement as to what was in the record.
That did not cccur. So the matter was remanded for the Court
to reconstruct the record.

I have had an cpportunity to review my notes as well as
pull the exhibits that were admitted into evidence on December
10th and 11th, and I will proceed as such and create the
record.

The parties appeared before the Court on December 10th.
Prior to the start cf the rule in this matter, discussion
occurred concerning a motion to compel as well as a motion to
guash in reference to bank records that were requested, tax

records, and then we proceeded with the defendant's case in
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not respond, as E and I had completed our conversation.
Michelle's text clearly indicates that Michelle was aware of
our communication. Michelle alienated the children because of
her anger and hatred, and now they are the product of that
alienation. Michelle has violated the spirit as well as the
letter of the court order.”

"Every Mother's Day, I take the girls shopping to get

their mother a gift and make sure they spend the day with her.

Regardless of how I feel about Michelle, I have never passed
those feelings to the children. I have always tried to
co-parent. Michelle, however, has always considered herself a
package deal with the children. If I den't want her, then I
can't have them.”

"On Wednesday, July 19th, 2017, the girls asked me to
take them to dinner. E.H.C had a friend, C.3.F, with her,
which was fine, but from the time I picked them up, they were
really being rude and misbehaving. During dinner, E.H.C asked
me when she could resume charges at The Dunes Club pool/
restaurant. T told her she needed to learn to ke respectful to
me and sharing my fiancee, whom they liked until Michelle found
out I had someone in my life. T asked them if they wanted to
go to the mountains at Christmas. E.H.C said that she did not
want to go 1f my parents were going. H.X.C said that she
would not go if my fiancee was going. The issue of the car

came up, as H.K.C had gotten her license, and I told H.K.C the
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reason she did not get a car from me is because of how she
acts towards me and Sherry. Her responsge was, 'You mean when
I called her a b-i-t-¢-h and a w-h-o-r-e%' I had had encugh
and T told them it was time to go. In response, they started
laughing at me and just refused to get up. I told them again
to get up, that we were leaving. They refused. I took their
drinks and placed them on another table and went to pay the
bill. I alsc took HK's phone away for being so disrespectful.
At least in my presence, I'm not going to reward bad behavior.
When I came back to the table, they still refused to get up.
They just sat at the table and drank their drinks and stared
at me. I picked up the salsa and poured it into each of their
glasses and told them I was leaving. Only then did they get
up. 1 was ashamed of them and ashamed for them.

I took E's friend home, and we all went Iinside. We were
there about 20 minutes and I was discussing what happened with
Eddie, Cassidy's father, then I pulled HK's phone out of my
pocket and realized that she had been recording the entire
evening's conversation as per her mother's request.”

And that did come in as an exhibit, but I'll get to that.

I tock the children -- I left the phone with Eddie. I
took the children home at approximately 10 p.m. I asked them
to get out of the truck, and they refused. Michelle has a
device on her computer so she can read all of the girls’

texts, and she came outside and demanded HK's phone. Although

108




=

10

A1

iz

13

14

15

16

17

ig

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

23

I had asked the children to get out of the car, Michelle told
them to stay right where they were. She knew that, if I kept
the phone, I had her texts, telling the girls to behave as
they had, and then to reccrd my reaction. I told Michelle she
ceculd not have the phone, and I asked what HXK's password was.
Michelle refused to give me the password and, again, told the
children to stay right where they were. I have this encounter
recorded, which includes the children being so disrespectful
that I can hardly stand to listen. They taunt me, fﬁey calléd
me a liar. They actually dared me to call the police. There"
was no co-parenting. Rather, Michelle was right in the midst,
announcing that we were all going to stay right where we were.
At 10:24 p.m., I got cut of the car and called 9-1-1.
All T wanted was to go home. 1 had recently been involved in
a bad car wreck and have a traumatic brain injury. I will be
fine but I move a little slower and it takes me longer to get
things dene. I did not -- I did not need this stress and I
alsc had to be at work at 7 a.m. the following morning. While
on the phone with the poliice, T noticed flashes comes from my
truck and realized that E was in my backseat, removing
financial documents from my briefcase and taking pictures of
them with her phone. Michelle was standing outside the car
during this time. While I don't know if she instructed E to
do -- photograph my financial records, she certainly did not

stop her.
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My children wanted to gc out to eat with me for no reason
but to set me up and see how they could upset me and then
record me. In hindsight, I should have called Sherry or a cab
or my parents to come and take me home, and I should have
taken my financial documents out of the backseat and left the
three of them to their own devices. However, I was not

thinking clearly. All I wanted was to get away from them and

go home. I spent from 8:30 p.m. to 10 p.m. with them being

rude and disrespectful to me and the people I love. Aﬁd thenwi
catch Michelle texting H.K.C, asking her tc record me
throughout dinner.”

Ckay. Defendant's Exhibit 19 also came in, and that was
a text from H.K.C on January 30th about meeting for dinner,
just the three of us. Of course it's several pages. And the
significance of Defendant's Exhibit 19, as compared with
Defendant's Exhibit 20, is that the father believed that the
mother had access to the children's phone and that some of the
texts that were allegedly sent from the children were actually
sent by the mother.

In Defendant's 19, the father believes that that did come
from the daughter, but he doesn't believe that Defendant's 20
came from the daughter. She was 13 years old when Plaintiff's
20 was sent, however, nearly 14 when 12 was sent.

And Defendant's 20 reads: "Look, Dad. This is kinda about

what H.K.C text to you." And this is coming from E.H.C,
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had both realized that we didn't have homework tonight so it
would have been convenient. When and where would you like to
meet and please tell Mama and Dada that we say hi." And
that's the text from the older child, by about two years,
compared to a very mature text from E.H.C, who is younger and
doesn't speak in that manner.

And his testimony, specific, was "H.K.C was 11 years old
when the parties separated. He believed that someone else
drafted the text.ar | 7 -

And then the father went on to testify abeout the
violations of wisitation, the daughter's making plans. And 1
have alsc referenced that. 2And he's put in a position to be
the bad guy by not letting the child go on the trip.

Okay. Defendant's 21 alsoc came in., And this was
another -- a text that the father doesn't believe that tThe
child actually sent, using language "What are you envisioning
needing tc happen for us te spend time alone with you?", even
though it was suppcsedly sent from H.K.C, and her alsgo stating,
"I'm not comfortanle with you coming at this point because I
want us to work on our relationship more before you start
coming to my events.”

And then Defendant's 22 was actually the messages between
the mother at the dinner that was referenced from Mom saying,
"Keep ybur phone close to him if you are recording, please.™

And then another message from Mom which sayg, "Please record
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if you can."”™ Sc that came in as Defendant's 22.

And then the last exhibit for the defendant that came in
on those -- that day was affidavit of attorney's fees, and
that would have been on December 1lth.

The exhibits that came in con behalf of the plaintiff are
as follows:

As T referenced, Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, the judge will

not review this document, as it was not a part of Ms. Bayne's.

records.

Plaintiff's 2 was a chat with Dad, and it's dated
April 4, 2017, and it's just some chats with Dad and H.K.C.
The significance of this coming in basically was, on April
10th, April 1l1th, during the spring break time, the plaintiff
sought to show that, even though the defendant indicated that
he didn't have the children ~- child for spring break, that he
was communicating with them and that he knew, in fact, where
they were. So that was reflected basically through this
exhibit.

Plaintiff's 2, another chat with Hal. And this is
Michelle Capps' iPhons.

And then Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 is just pictures of Sherry
Capps with Hal Capps.

And Pleaintiff's Exhibit 5, a letter from the Brittain Law
Firm to Anita Lee. Still the conflict between the counselors

and the judge needing to select a counselor for the children.
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forbidden, restrained, and enjoined from degrading or
denigrating the other in the presence of the children.
Specifically, Plaintiff instructed the children to record
conversations with Defendant during his visitation as well as
encouraged them to not vacate Defendant's automobile until the
cellphone in issue, on which she had instructed them to record
their father, was located."”

Now, I read that into the record. "This type of behavior
pfémotes disreéﬁect, degradatién, aﬁdideniéfation of ther
father by the children with not just permission but the
insistence of Plaintiff. I find that Plaintiff is in willful
violaticn of the court order as it pertains to this
provision."”

And we also have the exhibit of the mother telling the
children to record it, and I read into the record -- and it's
in my notes -- the incident that happened.

MS. DERRICK: In regards to these neotes, the only thing I
have tc add to that is that he admitted that he had teld both
pclice officers that he did net have the cellphone of the
child and refused to return it on that evening after he had
taken it. |

TEE COURT: Absolutely he did because he wanted to get
proocf that the mother had instructed the children toc reccrd
him, and that was inappropriate conduct. He admitted that he

told the police he didn't hawve it. In fact, it was with his
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friend, Edward Friend. But he did what he thought was in the
best interest in terms of his best interest in proving that
the mother had violated the ccurt order.

But even though -- okay, and you said -- yes, I agree
that he saild that, but he also explained why he told the
police that, and I still don't think that that has any
difference in the Court's ruling in terms of finding your
client in willful viclation for encouraging the children to
recordrgheir father ahd the findings that I maderwith respéét
to Paragraph 7(i) -- well, 7(i) and 7 (7).

All right. Anything else you believe the Court failed to
address? And starting your cross-examination, Ms. Derrick,
let me just read that, because you did start your
cross-examination. And one question that I did note that you
asked -- now, let me get to my notes, because I have been
moving papers around.

Yeah, and you commented abcout the children not being
invited to his wedding, and you questioned him concerning
that, and my -- what he said was his wife -- well, hisg ex-wife
made a big scene at her father's wedding. He didén't want that
to occur at his, so he chose nct to invite the children.

You did ask him if he thought it was appropriate for the
children to be placed in DSS custody, and he explained that by
stating what he said in his rule. It would hurt him for them

to learn that, but because of what Michelle is encouraging
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